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GLOSSARY

AR 52

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the RAFEHRA - B X E BB THFAE

following terms shall have the meanings set out below.

“2020 AGM”

[2020F i B A F K&

"AGM"
(RRBFEAE]

“Articles of Association”

(M4 =2 AR

“Ascend”
[Ascend]

“Audit Committee”

ERrEI A

“Board”

[EE2
“business day”
E=E3=N

"BVI"
[(RBEXES]

"CEO”
[T B 485

"CG Code”
[ E8 Al

“Chairman”

ENEA
“Chit Tat”
(422 |

“close associates”

[ B E A

“code provision(s)”

[F BIl 5 3 J
“"Company”

EAVACIE

“Company Secretary”

[RAIME]

“connected person(s)”

[FE AL

BEBANUATHE -

the AGM to be held on Wednesday, 23 September 2020
#H2020F9A23A (R B ) BITHRRBF KRG

the annual general meeting of the Company

AREBRRBERE

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RAGHEBERMA - L& TEIEET

Ascend Group Holdings Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Ascend Group Holdings Limited * " ARIMEZ 2 EME QA

the audit committee of the Board
ExeFERLEY

the board of Directors

55

any day (other than a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in Hong Kong) on which
licensed banks in Hong Kong are generally open for business
BEREFERRIT - RAFMALENTEAEF (28X EHAXNBTBEL2RRBAKRIN

the British Virgin Islands
KBRS

the chief executive officer of the Company

AR BT BAR EL

the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
FARAM S TN EEE R TRRGEERRSE

the chairman of the Board

E

Chit Tat Electrical Engineering Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company
RERESIRARLQR  ARANBEEZENB AR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

EBLEWmARRMETNEE

code provision(s) as set out in the CG Code
12 E 6 ST RIS P A9 #Y <7 BIE X

Accel Group Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1283)
SREEZERAERLAG  RASHSTMKINARAR @ ERONEBERA
(P& 1 1R 5% - 1283)

the company secretary of the Company

RRAR AR WE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LEMARAETRE



"Controlling Shareholder(s)”

422 B B 3R

"Corresponding Year”

[ 4]
“COVID-19"
(%7 2 8 AR 8 = % |

“Director(s)"”

[E =]

“E&M”
[# %

"ESG”

(B EREA

“Group” or “our” or “Accel”
or "us” or “we”

[REE ] [HM]IK =
il

“HK$" or “HKD" or “cents”
[T gk [l

"Hong Kong”
(&%)

“INED(s)"
(B IFRITESE]

“Listing”
(£

“Listing Date”
[ B

“Listing Rules”
[ £ AR Bl

“Main Board”

[E ]
“Memorandum of
Association”
[#H #% = 72 K40
“Model Code”

BRI

SEERERBRA 20204 R

GLOSSARY =

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules, and in the context of the
Company, means Mr. Ko, Ms. Cheung and Lightspeed Limited, or any one of them
EAEFWMBREFBE FORE RARQRR ™S EE %% 5K 2 KLightspeed
Limited » SkEREF—HF AL

the year ended 31 March 2019
B E2019F3A31HIEFE

the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19), a respiratory illness caused by a novel
coronavirus

209 EMESABGTEERRER) - HETMES 3| O RRTRRA

the director(s) of the Company
PAN/NESTIE =

electrical and mechanical

B®E

the environmental, social and governance
RIE -HERER

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRaE) R E K E AR

Hong Kong dollars or cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EREEEEABITIEMN

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEFEFNITHRR

the independent non-executive Director(s)

BUFRATES

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board
BHRER LT

18 October 2019, being the date of Listing
20194F10418H + BN =0 A &7

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended
from time to time

B3PS ETRA - TR ]

the stock market operated by the Stock Exchange
Bt 32 B 48 1 0 AR 7 35

the memorandum of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RRARNREETH) A 58 5 12 K4
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out

in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRBMSETAEINLETETANEETETESRHNFETE
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GLOSSARY =

“Mr. CK Ko"
(&AL E]
“Mr. Ko"

(&5

“Ms. Cheung”
Rt

“MVAC"
[ 8 L % 2= RV &)

“Nomination Committee”

RRZEE]

“Period”
[ 7N 5 4

“PRC”

[ E

“Register of Members”

[ A R it

“Remuneration Committee”

[(FHEE=]

HSECH

(EEe]

"SFO”
[ 7 & B & 15 1)

“Share Offer”
[ % 1 2% &

“Share(s)”

A% 15 ]
“Shareholder(s)"”
[ % =

“Stock Exchange”
(Bt 22 PfT

"Year”

[REFE ]

Annual Report 2020

Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit, a non-executive Director and a son of Mr. Ko and
Ms. Cheung
SERGEE  FRTEERSELERRLLIZRF

Mr. Ko Lai Hung, the Chairman, an executive Director, the CEO, one of the Controlling
Shareholders, the spouse of Ms. Cheung and the father of Mr. CK Ko

SRS E X ITES TTHAH EBRERzZ—  RZIzEEERESE
BEEHLER

Ms. Cheung Mei Lan, an executive Director, one of the Controlling Shareholders, the
spouse of Mr. Ko and the mother of Mr. CK Ko
REBLL HTES ZERREZ— SaErRBBRSEGLENET R

mechanical ventilation and air-conditioning

1 R R B ZE R A

the nomination committee of the Board

E=gR%%BY

the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2020
R Em A E E2020F3A31A8 1L # R

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report, unless
the context requires otherwise, does not include Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and Taiwan
PEARANE  REAFHEME  WXBSAMEN TREES HEARHK
MEBGRFIRRIITHE R & E MR

the register of members of the Company

ZA/NEI S 2

the remuneration committee of the Board

ExeFNEES

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

EEEFLHPEERERZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
BEREDESNEEF L BAE %D

200,000,000 Shares were issued at a price of HK$0.73 per Share by way of public

offer and placing of the Shares
FRAFBEEREER N 277 XIRFA0.73% 7T &Y B 4% 17200,000,000A% A% 5

share(s) of nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RRARAFFGREENB T Z KK

the holder(s) of Share(s)

BB A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

ERABMAERIMARAIDR

the year ended 31 March 2020
B Z20205F3A31H I FE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B IS

RESULTS ¥i&

For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MBLEFE
2020 2019 2018 2017

2020 20195 20185 20175
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FERT FERT FERT

Revenue N 522,332 312,732 210,804 193,635
Profit before taxation B 350 A1 Vg ) 88,255 56,262 43,250 36,761
Income tax expense FTSBF X (15,600) (10,867) (7,181) (5,456)
Profit for the year AN s ) 72,655 45,395 36,069 31,305
Profit attributable to equity ZAYNSIE £l &

shareholders of the Company FE A& 5 72,655 45,395 36,069 31,305
FINANCIAL POSITIONS B 5% AR R

As at 31 March
M3H31H
2020 2019 2018 2017

20205 20194 20184 201745
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T FHE T FHE T

Current assets mBEE 304,028 137,903 139,193 183,279
Non-current assets IERBEE 63,194 12,445 9,545 2,939
Current liabilities measE 60,999 43,217 97,535 70,843
Non-current liabilities EREBERE 1,205 1,108 451 692
Net assets BEFE 305,018 106,023 50,752 114,683

Total equity attributable to equity 772 &) 4 5 i% &R
shareholders of the Company FEAS %5 4R 5 305,018 106,023 50,752 114,683

Total equity HEm B 305,018 106,023 50,752 114,683
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFREHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Accel Group Holdings Limited,
| am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the Year.

This Year, global financial markets fluctuated substantially due to
various uncertainties including ongoing China-US trade dispute
as well as the outbreak of the novel coronavirus. Furthermore,
the continued social unrest in Hong Kong increased downside
risks to economic and business sentiment. Even so, our Group
has been successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 18 October 2019 which help to strengthen our
capital base. Furthermore, leveraging on our project management
experience as well as the long term established relationship with
our customers, we have been granted certain numbers of E&M
engineering services projects which help ensuring our business
growth.

Our Group is in the progress of certain large scaled E&M
engineering services projects which contributing our business
growth as well as maintaining our financial position. This year,
the revenue of our Group boosted by approximately 67.0%;
the profit for the year rocketed by approximately 60.1% and
our basic earnings per share increased by approximately 39.0%
compared with the corresponding year. The Board of Directors
hereby recommended a final dividend payment of 3.2 HK cents
per Share.

With our strengthened project cost control and continuous
improvement in our project quality management, we have been
granted several E&M engineering services projects during the
Year. Further, our Group has obtained 7 projects with a total
contract sum of approximately HK$298.3 million for the period
after the Year and up to the date of this annual report. We
will continue to make the most of our advantages and actively
participate in tendering, in order to lay a strong foundation for
our further growth.

Looking forward, we will strive for obtaining more projects and
to maintain the relationship with our business partners in order to
strength our market position in the Hong Kong E&M engineering
services market. At the same time, the Group will actively look
for new business opportunities and bring better returns to
Shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to send our heartfelt
gratitude to our Shareholders, customers, business partners and
our professional team for their support. | would also like to
express my sincere appreciation to our staff members for their
commitment and support. We will continue to move forward and
seize opportunities in today’s challenging environment in order
to create maximum value for our Shareholders.

Ko Lai Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2020

HMEBRR:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an established E&M engineering services provider
involving supply, installation and maintenance of MVAC systems
in Hong Kong. The Board is of the view that the Group has
established experience in private residential MVAC systems works
with a competitive advantage, hence the Group places more focus
on projects in relation to the supply, installation and maintenance
of MVAC systems especially in private residential sector.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic in January 2020 in
the PRC, the contagion of COVID-19 has spread worldwide.
Different countries’ authorities have taken national prevention and
control measures against the disease. The epidemic caused by
the COVID-19 has certain impacts on the business operation and
overall economy in different regions and industries in the world.

In response to the epidemic, a few projects have been suspended
by the relevant property developers in February 2020 for a short
period of time. All suspended projects have resumed operations
since March 2020. The Directors consider that the impact of
COVID-19 on the Group’s operations and future prospects would
depend on the duration of the epidemic, the implementation of
regulatory policies and relevant protective measures that might
affect the business environment that the Group is operating
at. If any construction workers working on the same project is
infected with COVID-19, it will significantly affect the progress of
the project. The Group will stay alert on the development and
situation of the COVID-19, continue to assess its impacts on the
financial position and operating results of the Group and take
necessary actions to mitigate its business risk.

Despite the tense social atmosphere in Hong Kong and the mass
outbreak of COVID-19 that has slowed the global economy,
the Group maintained a strong growth and a stable financial
position during the Year. Leveraging on its professional project
management capabilities and long-term cooperative relationship
with customers, the Group managed to obtain a number of large-
scale E&M engineering services projects during and after the Year.
The Group will actively look for new businesses opportunities and
bring better returns to the Shareholders.

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board by the
Share Offer on 18 October 2019.

EEERWR D

£ JE) -
AEEE-HESLEANKE TE RS HE
BN BRRE ZREFREERWER
RERFAHESR - EFTERR/AKENLE
EERWMBRAMZERFHER IRELINL
BRARMARUBRFES  RAKERIIN
YR REMRERWBR R ZERAHR
REMNER LEENLEEEE -

B2020F 1 AEFEBEMN AT RESEIBIN
KA BRRAENERLECERIREL -
TRAEREREHEZERKRTERER
RiEslfEk B SRESS RN REY
2IHRATRAM R RITENEF L ERBRELCE
EE—TEFE-

BIELZNE - 2020928 - BREEMEMER
EREHAYEETIEE - B2020F3/ 18 -
FTEEEMEEYERELE MESRAE
FRABKRSHAEBMEERRARNENT
EERITRARZRTEOFERRE  BHEMNE
EHRENMAEYENAEECENENEE
IRBZMABRERE - XNE—HE TIEME
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B R LAR B B E R R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &I 8 57 i 2 9 #r

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately HK$209,600,000
or 67.0% to approximately HK$522,332,000 for the Year
as compared to approximately HK$312,732,000 for the
Corresponding Year. The increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in service provided in relation to our E&M engineering
projects which include (i) the construction progress of certain
projects on hand including two residential projects in Tuen
Mun and a residential project in Tin Shui Wai; and (ii) projects
commenced after the Corresponding Year has contributed to the
revenue in the Year such as a residential project located in Shum
Shui Po and a residential project in Plantation Road.

Cost of services

Bt 7% [ B8

W =

A& B U s A& F A 49312,732,0000% T 18
50 49209,600,0007% JT 2£67.0% £ A FE /4
522,332,000 7T c BRI E Z m RN E AT
BEIREBRFORBEIGM - BIEOREEM
FMEEEEE R RXKEHN —EBEZEEBE
WA TFBEEBEEMNER: RI)R EFER
PFMNEEERAFTEHREIELER  EF
BRERARREKENEETERRUAEBEE BN
F=EmEBE -

BR 7% BX A

For the year ended 31 March
HE3AMBLEE
2020 2019
2020 20195

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAEAR TR
Subcontracting fees DEE 152,071 37.4% 92,248 39.8%
Cost of materials MR AR 187,178 46.1% 82,564 35.6%
Direct labour costs BEESIRA 56,002 13.8% 50,424 21.8%
Others Hith 10,892 2.7% 6,482 2.8%
Total BT 406,143 100.0% 231,718 100.0%

REEBNRBRALIEZHOM KL 217
HBE L ERAHRL  PIM=ER - BR

The Group's cost of services mainly represented (i) cost of
materials including MVAC systems such as air conditioners and

ventilation fans and accessories such as pipes and fittings, and
(i) subcontracting fees for completing on-site works. The cost of
services increased by approximately HK$174,425,000 or 75.3%
to approximately HK$406,143,000 for the Year, as compared to
approximately HK$231,718,000 for the Corresponding Year. The
increase was primarily attributable to the accelerated project
progress of certain projects during the Year. The increase of cost
of services was in line with the increase in the Group’s revenue.

BB R E B  R>TEKIFELIEN
DEE o IR A B A F A 49231,718,000%
JC 3 AN #9174,425,000/8 7L £75.3% E AR F E
#)49406,143,000/ 70 - BB INE ZHMRAE
FEATHEENIRREZINRATE - RBEK
7N 480 B AN 5 AT B B 0 — B o



EEEEERARAT 200FFH 11 4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & IE i1 i & 94T

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately
HK$35,175,000 or 43.4% from approximately HK$81,014,000 for
the Corresponding Year to approximately HK$116,189,000 for the
Year.

The Group’s gross profit margin decreased by 3.7 points to
22.2% for the Year as compared with the Corresponding Year of
25.9%. The decrease in the gross profit margin was mainly due
to the fact that substantial amount of revenue were recognised
from certain new projects commenced in the Year with lower
profit margin and the impact of COVID-19 since January 2020.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly comprised staff costs, travelling
and transportation, rental and building management fee,
professional fee, office expenses, depreciation expenses and
others. Administrative expenses increased from approximately
HK$14,850,000 for the Corresponding Year to approximately
HK$22,097,000 for the Year. The increase in administrative
expenses of the Group was mainly due to the increase in staff
costs, professional fees and donations.

Income tax expense

The income tax expense increased by approximately
HK$4,733,000 or 43.6% to approximately HK$15,600,000 for
the Year, as compared to approximately HK$10,867,000 for the
Corresponding Year. The increase was in line with the increase
in the gross profit and the profit before taxation of the Group.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the
year

For the Year and Corresponding Year, the Group's profit and
total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company were approximately HK$72,655,000 and
HK$45,395,000, respectively. The increase in profit and total
comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was mainly due to the increase in revenue.

Dividend

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.2 cents per Share for the Year (the “Final
Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members on Monday, 5 October 2020, which amount
to approximately HK$25,600,000 (2019: Nil). Subject to the
passing of the relevant resolution at the forthcoming 2020 AGM,
the Final Dividend is expected to be paid to the Shareholders on
or around Tuesday, 27 October 2020.

EFRERNZE
AEEHEFAEFAAS81,014,000% T 1%
B0 #935,175,000/8 JT k43.4% E AR FE M A
116,189,000 7T °

AREEMNEN KA EFH259% R P37EE
DEERFEM22.2% c EFERITEER
R AFERENE THREERSREE
F R R EBD Y 28 PA & B2020F1 AR 937 B 7S
MBS B -

THREX
THHAILXETEREETIRA ZKREX B
E HeMEFEERE  ZEBH BQAEHA
S oERIREM - THRAIXHAEFND
14,850,000 JT 1& N & 2N F £ /9 922,097,000
B e AEEMITHASEMEZANRET
BRA - BXEBRARESZREIEGM -

FriEMBx

T 15 B B < A & F 89 £910,867,000/% JT 18
5 #94,733,000/8 JT 5043.6% = AN F E 8 4
15,600,000/ 7T - B IE R AR KB/ E F|
N B B A & B 3 R AR o

FradREHEHWE LR

RAFEEREF  ARAIEZBREEGEASE
A 2 E W B 5 9 R4 272,655,000
7 7T }45,395,00078 7T ° AN A A) M %% I R e
R A R 2 RS BRI I B AR I
e

R E
FEEGORFEEZMMN2020F10A58 (£ H
—) AT PR & A % SR B AN O R 2R
BERI2EWMIRERE]D) AL ENAE
25,600,000 70 (20194F : £E) - FEBAZR
RIEE2020F R EBF RS FERBER - B
2572020 10A278 (28 =) sk AT & AR R
TRKRBRE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BB BiT i & 04T

Trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments increased
by approximately HK$32,860,000 or 93.3% from approximately
HK$35,211,000 as at 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$68,071,000 as at 31 March 2020.

Trade receivables increased by approximately HK$12,312,000 or
41.9% from approximately HK$29,418,000 as at 31 March 2019
to approximately HK$41,730,000 as at 31 March 2020. The
increase was due to significant amount of revenue certified by
the employers at the end of the Year which were in accordance
with those projects’ construction schedules.

Prepayments for purchase of materials and subcontracting fees
increased by approximately HK$21,315,000 or 2,915.9% from
approximately HK$731,000 as at 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$22,046,000 as at 31 March 2020. The significant increase
was mainly due to the prepayment paid to various suppliers for
securing the material supply for our projects on hand.

Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets represent the Group’s rights to considerations
from customers for the provision of E&M engineering services,
which arise when: (i) the Group completed the relevant services
under such contracts but yet certified by architects, surveyors
or other representatives appointed by the customers; and (i)
the customers withhold certain certified amounts payable to the
Group as retention money (i.e. retention receivables) to secure the
due performance of the contracts. Contract liabilities represent
the Group’s obligation to transfer of E&M engineering services to
customers for which the Group has received advance payments
from the customers.

Contract assets increased by approximately HK$38,199,000 or
56.3% from approximately HK$67,842,000 as at 31 March 2019
to approximately HK$106,041,000 as at 31 March 2020. The
significant increase in the amount of contract assets was mainly
due to increase in retention receivables from the ongoing projects
and enhanced size of contract works that the relevant services
were completed but yet to be certified by architects, surveyors
or other representatives appointed by the customers at the end
of the Year.
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Pledged bank balances and bank balances and
cash

The Group's pledged bank balances were secured for the grant of
performance bonds to the Group by a bank. The pledged bank
balances and bank balances and cash increased by approximately
HK$144,743,000 or 415.3% from approximately HK$34,850,000
as at 31 March 2019 to approximately HK$179,593,000 as at 31
March 2020. The balances and cash were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and mainly represented the proceeds from Share
Offer. Details of the use of proceeds were illustrated in the section
headed “Use of Proceeds” in this annual report.

Trade, retention and other payables and accruals

Trade, retention and other payables and accruals increased by
approximately HK$14,773,000 or 43.3% from approximately
HK$34,126,000 as at 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$48,899,000 as at 31 March 2020.

Trade payables increased by approximately HK$8,839,000 or
50.1% from approximately HK$17,646,000 as at 31 March 2019
to approximately HK$26,485,000 as at 31 March 2020. The
increase was mainly due to the purchase of MVAC systems for
projects installation at the end of the Year.

Retention payables increased by approximately HK$8,825,000
or 151.6% from approximately HK$5,821,000 as at 31 March
2019 to approximately HK$14,646,000 as at 31 March 2020. The
increase was mainly due to the contribution by the subcontractors
to our existing projects.

BANK LOAN

Bank loan, secured
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According to the relevant banking facilities letters, the bank
borrowings of the Group are payable as follows:

REMBRTEE KM - NEREARTER
FEfTEAT

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2020 2019

2020 2019F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TERT

Within one year —&R 136 976
Within a period of more than one year —FH EETBBAME

but not exceeding two years B 140 136
Within a period of more than two years MEFA LB ERBAF

but not exceeding five years LA 207 347

Within a period of more than five years FFE EHA - -

483 1,459

The Group's bank loan as at 31 March 2019 and 2020 was lent
by a bank under its banking facilities granted to the Group. The
banking facilities were secured by personal guarantees given by
Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung in favour of the bank and their certain
properties and the Group’s carpark space and insurance policy.
In April 2020, the personal guarantees given by Mr. Ko and Ms.
Cheung were released.

Notwithstanding the provisions stated in the aforesaid banking
facilities, the bank may at any time without prior notice, modify,
cancel or suspend the banking facilities, at the sole discretion of
such bank; including, without limitation, cancelling any unutilised
facilities and declaring any outstanding amount to be immediately
due and payable. Accordingly, the above bank loan was classified
as current liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and 2020.

The bank loan as at 31 March 2020 bore variable interest rate
at 2% per annum below Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by the
relevant bank (2019: 2% per annum below Hong Kong Prime Rate
quoted by the relevant bank). The bank loan was denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group will further expand the service
capabilities to capture business opportunities with the aim of
being a preferred choice of E&M engineering services provider.
The Group will provide customers with comprehensive E&M
engineering services to enhance the market position with a
prudent financial management strategy, pursuing a long-term
healthy business growth and stable return to the Shareholders.

In order to expand the professional talent pool for the tendered
prospective projects, the Group will continue to strengthen its
human resources and focus on the training of talents to build
a team with outstanding members and will employ additional
staff especially in project management, engineering and safety
sector. The Directors are of the view that the additional staff in
project management, engineering and safety sector will provide
the Group with better control over the design, management and
safety of our projects.

The Group will remain perseverance in its business development
and improve our ability to obtain new projects. As a result of
the continuous hard work by the management, the Group has
obtained 7 projects with a total contract sum of approximately
HK$298,285,000 for the period after the Year and up to the
date of this annual report. The Group will continue to make the
most of its advantages and actively participate in tendering, in
a hope to increase market share and ensuring stable growth of
the Group’s business. At the same time, the Group will actively
look for new businesses opportunities and bring better returns
to Shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group’s working capital was financed by
internal resources and the proceeds from the Share Offer. The
current ratio of the Group, which is calculated based on the
current assets divided by current liabilities, was approximately
4.98 times as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: approximately
3.19 times). The Group generally financed its daily operations from
cash flows generated internally.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its trade payables, bank borrowings and financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and long term.
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GEARING RATIO

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated based on the total
interest-bearing liabilities divided by the total equity (defined as
the sum of bank loan and lease liabilities as at the respective
year end divided by total equity as at the respective year end)
was approximately 1.1% as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019:
approximately 3.3%).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$1,418,000
in leasehold improvements, motor vehicles and furniture, fixtures
and equipment (Corresponding Year: HK$2,701,000 in carpark
space and furniture, fixtures and equipment).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no significant capital
commitments (31 March 2019: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2020.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group was granted bank facilities
for obtaining bank loan and giving performance guarantees to
its customers. These bank facilities were secured by personal
guarantees given by Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung in favour of the
bank and their certain properties and the Group's carpark space,
pledged bank balances and the insurance policy. In April 2020,
the personal guarantees given by Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung were
released.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

During the Year, the Group did not have any significant
investments, material acquisitions nor disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group is
not significantly exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the respective group
entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy as the foreign currency risk is considered to be insignificant.
However, the management will continue to closely monitor the
Group's foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure when necessary.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed 159 employees
(31 March 2019: 146 employees) with total staff costs
of approximately HK$69,268,000 incurred for the Year
(Corresponding Year: approximately HK$60,119,000). In order
to attract and retain high quality staff and to enable smooth
operation within the Group, the remuneration policy and package
of the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed. The salary
and benefit levels of the employees of the Group are competitive
(with reference to market conditions and individual qualifications
and experience). The Group provides adequate job training to the
employees to equip them with practical knowledge and skills.
Apart from mandatory provident fund and job training programs,
salaries increment, discretionary bonuses and share options
may be awarded to employees according to the assessment of
individual performance and market situation.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
September 2019 for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to eligible participants for their contributions or potential
contributions to the Group. Such scheme became effective on 18
October 2019.

COMPETING INTEREST

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors or the Controlling Shareholders or their
close associates was interested in any business which competed
or might compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group nor had or might have with the Group any conflicts
of interest.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the listing of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange were approximately HK$125,345,000. The Directors
intend to deploy the proceeds according to the manner set out
in the prospectus of the Company dated 27 September 2019.
The unutilised net proceeds are expected to be fully utilised
according to the intended allocation by the second quarter of
2021. The actual completion time of the use of net proceeds will
be determined based on the future business development of the
Group. Set out below is the actual use of net proceeds up to 31
March 2020:
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Utilised net
proceeds
during the
Estimated period from the Unutilised net
proceeds Listing Date to proceeds as at
Intended application allocation 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
RETBEHEE
2020§3A31H 120205
IEHEZ 3A31A 2
fti 5t FT 15 EBAME ABRAME
RES RIEEH MIEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Purchasing performance bonds BEBORES 43,120 43,120 -
MVAC procurement costs BRBRRERADEE
BN 59,290 20,803 38,487
Hiring additional staff EEET 11,660 1,007 10,653
General working capital —REEES 11,275 5,000 6,275
Total &5 125,345 69,930 55,415

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
In relation to 2020 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Friday, 18
September 2020 to Wednesday, 23 September 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfers of Shares shall be
effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2020
AGM, all transfers of Shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms, must be lodged for registration
with the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 17 September 2020.

In relation to the proposed Final Dividend
Conditional on the passing of the resolution approving the
declaration of the Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the 2020
AGM, the Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday,
29 September 2020 to Monday, 5 October 2020, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfers of Shares shall be
effected. In order to qualify for the Final Dividend, all transfers
of Shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
transfer forms, must be lodged for registration with the Hong
Kong branch share registrar of the Company, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 28
September 2020.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ko Lai Hung (&% #), aged 50, is the founder of our
Group, the Chairman, an executive Director, our CEO and one
of our Controlling Shareholders. He joined our Group on 18
February 2000 and was appointed as a Director on 20 September
2018. Mr. Ko was appointed as the Chairman and the CEO,
and was re-designated as an executive Director on 24 January
2019. He is also a member of our Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. He is responsible for the overall
strategic planning, management and administration of our
Group's business operations. Mr. Ko is currently a director of
Ascend and Chit Tat. Mr. Ko is the spouse of Ms. Cheung,
an executive Director, and the father of Mr. CK Ko, the non-
executive Director. Mr. Ko is also a director of Lightspeed Limited,
a Controlling Shareholder.

Mr. Ko has accumulated over 20 years of experience in the E&M
engineering industry in Hong Kong. Prior to founding the Group,
he was the proprietor of Chit Tat Engineering Co, which was
mainly involved in the provision of electrical engineering services
in Hong Kong, from 1995 to 2006. With his extensive industry
experience, Mr. Ko founded, together with other industry players,
Hong Kong Air Conditioning Construction Association Limited (&
BRI EHPRAF]), a non-profit-making organisation with
a mission of strengthening the connection and communication
among air conditioning contractors in Hong Kong in June 2018.
He has been leading the association as the president and one of
the directors of the association since founding the association.
Chit Tat is also a member of this association.

Ms. Cheung Mei Lan (3R % 8), aged 50, is an executive
Director and one of our Controlling Shareholders. She joined our
Group on 18 February 2000 and was appointed as a Director
on 20 September 2018. Ms. Cheung was re-designated as an
executive Director on 24 January 2019. She is responsible for the
overall strategic planning, management and administration of our
Group's business operations. Ms. Cheung is currently a director of
Ascend and Chit Tat. She is the spouse of Mr. Ko, an executive
Director and the mother of Mr. CK Ko, the non-executive Director.
Ms. Cheung is also a director of Lightspeed Limited, a Controlling
Shareholder.

Since the incorporation of Chit Tat, Ms. Cheung has accumulated
more than 18 years of experience in the E&M engineering
industry in Hong Kong. She has been a director of Chit Tat since
2000.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit (S #), aged 26, was appointed as
the non-executive Director on 24 January 2019. He is a member
of our Audit Committee. Mr. CK Ko is responsible for advising on
business development and planning of our Group. Mr. CK Ko is a
son of Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung, both being executive Directors.

Mr. CK Ko graduated from the University of Rochester in the
United States with a master’s degree in finance and the University
of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in economics and finance
in December 2016 and November 2015, respectively. He became
a member of the Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst
Association in November 2017. Mr. CK Ko has been a SFC licensed
representative of Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities in Hong Kong since June 2018
and May 2020, respectively. He has been working in Bright Minds
Capital Limited since September 2017 and his current position is
assistant vice president. He founded Erth Limited, a start-up green
lifestyle company incorporated in Hong Kong in November 2017,
and has been a director of it since then.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (FR&#) (“Mr. CT Chan”), aged 70,
was appointed as an INED on 18 September 2019. He is the
chairperson of our Nomination Committee and a member of our
Audit Committee and our Remuneration Committee. Mr. CT Chan
is responsible for providing independent advice to our Board.

Mr. CT Chan has over 32 years of work experience in the Inland
Revenue Department. His last position was assistant commissioner
before he retired in 2005. Mr. CT Chan graduated from the
Central Queensland University in Australia with a master’s degree
in financial management in October 1995 through distance
learning. He has been an associate of The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators) of London, the United Kingdom and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (formerly known as
The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries) since March
1974 and August 1994, respectively. Mr. CT Chan has also been a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(formerly known as the Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since
March 1986; a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (formerly known as the Association of Certified
Accountants) since November 1983; and a fellow of CPA Australia
(formerly known as the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants) since June 1990.
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Mr. CT Chan has been the sole director of C T Tax Consultants
Limited, a tax consultancy, since August 2006. Further, Mr.
CT Chan has been an independent non-executive director of
Medicskin Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8307), Hyfusin Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8512), Chong Fai Jewellery Group
Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as Dominate Group
Holdings Company Limited) (Stock Code: 8537), Ye Xing Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1941) and Wasion Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 3393) since December 2014, June 2018,
September 2018, February 2020 and June 2020, respectively.
He was an independent non-executive director of Guangdong
Tannery Limited (Stock Code: 1058) from March 2006 to June
2020; Noble Jewelry Holdings Limited (currently known as Central
Development Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 475) from October
2006 to December 2011; Wasion Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3393) from May 2014 to May 2015; and Man Sang International
Limited (Stock Code: 938) from January 2015 to December 2016.

Ms. Tse Ka Wing (#f % #), aged 36, was appointed as an
INED on 18 September 2019. She is the chairperson of our Audit
Committee. Ms. Tse is responsible for providing independent
advice to our Board.

Ms. Tse obtained an associate of business administration degree in
accountancy and a bachelor of business administration degree in
accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2004 and November 2006, respectively. She also obtained a
master of corporate governance degree from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in September 2018. She has been a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
since November 2018. In addition, Ms. Tse has been a member
and a certified public accountant (practising) of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2011 and
March 2014, respectively and practising in the name of Winmax
& Partners (C.P.A.) Limited since April 2020. She is currently an
authorised supervisor of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants to train prospective members of the institute.

Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Tse has accumulated over 13
years of financial and accounting experience. She worked as
an auditor in Andrew Tse & Company from September 2006
to February 2008. Thereafter, she served BDO Limited for five
years with her last position as assistant manager (assurance) from
February 2008 to November 2013. In November 2013, Ms. Tse
joined Union Honor International Enterprise Limited as an assistant
accounting manager, and then worked in HKUE Limited from
November 2014 to March 2016 with her last position as financial
controller. Subsequently, Ms. Tse served as the financial controller
and company secretary at Kwong Man Kee Group Limited (Stock
Code: 8023) from March 2016 to December 2017. Ms. Tse joined
Skyway United Limited in March 2018 and her current position
is chief financial officer and company secretary.
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Mr. Ho Chi Shing (f77& ), aged 68, was appointed as an
INED on 18 September 2019. He is the chairperson of our
Remuneration Committee and a member of our Nomination
Committee. Mr. Ho is responsible for providing independent
advice to our Board.

Mr. Ho graduated from The University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor of science degree in engineering, a postgraduate
diploma in software engineering, a master of business
administration and a postgraduate certificate in laws in November
1976, January 1989, November 1991 and June 2011, respectively.
He also obtained a graduate diploma in English and Hong Kong
law (common professional examination) and a bachelor of laws
from The Manchester Metropolitan University in July 2008 and
July 2009, respectively. Mr. Ho was admitted as a member of the
Institution of Electrical Engineers in November 1981. He has been:
(i) a Chartered Engineer of the Council of Engineering Institutions
since February 1982; (ii) a member of the Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers since July 1985; and (iii) a member of the Chartered
Institution of Building Services Engineers (formerly known as the
Chartered Institution of Building Services) since April 1982 and a
fellow of it since March 2004. He practised as a Barrister-at-law
from October 2012 to December 2014.

Mr. Ho has over 30 years of experience in the construction
industry in Hong Kong. He worked in China Light & Power
Company Limited from September 1976 to October 1979 with
his last position as a second engineer of the sub-station design
department. He had served the Hong Kong Housing Authority for
about 32 years from October 1979 to September 2011 with his
last position held as the chief building services engineer. He had
been an honorary advisor for Hong Kong Applied Science and
Technology Research Institute Company Limited from October
2011 to October 2016. Mr. Ho has served as a member of
the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency’s governing council
since 2005, and has been taking the role as deputy chairman
since 2011. Mr. Ho has been working at BEAM Society Limited
as a general manager since March 2014. He has also been
appointed as a part-time lecturer in Shenzhen Audencia Business
School since July 2018 and an honorary principal lecturer in
the Department of Electrical and Electronic Engineering of The
University of Hong Kong since September 2005. Mr. Ho is
currently an Adjunct Associate Professor of The University of Hong
Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Tak Sun Sammy (FR#81S), aged 56, is our chief
financial officer and Company Secretary. He joined our Group in
September 2018 and is responsible for overseeing our Group's
financial operations and the overall corporate governance of our
Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a master degree of business administration
from The Open University of Hong Kong in June 2006 and
a professional diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in November 1988. He has been a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since March
1997 and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since January 1993. Mr. Chan has
accumulated more than 20 years of experience in the finance
industry.

Mr. Lam Ka Tak (#Z1§), aged 51, is a project director of
our Group. He joined our Group in December 2015 as a project
manager and was subsequently promoted to senior project
manager and project director in February 2017 and January
2019, respectively. Mr. Lam is primarily responsible for the overall
management of our Group’s E&M engineering projects.

Mr. Lam obtained a higher diploma in mechanical engineering
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1994. He has over 20
years of experience in the construction industry. Before joining
our Group, Mr. Lam worked in Kervin Engineering Co., Ltd. from
October 1993 to November 2012 with his last position held
as project manager. He also served as the project manager of
Pyrofoe Air-Conditioning & Electrical Co., Ltd. from December
2012 to October 2015.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 63 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK3.2 cents per Share for the Year to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members
on Monday, 5 October 2020, amounting to approximately
HK$25,600,000 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group during the Year and
the discussion on the Group’s future business development are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, and the descriptions of
key financial performance indicators are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”. The financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. Save as
disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements,
there was no significant event affecting the Group has occurred
since the end of the financial year ended 31 March 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report. In addition, discussions on
the Group’s relationships with key stakeholders, environmental
policies and performance, compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group and
the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are as
follows:

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers and
subcontractors and suppliers.

Employees

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets
of the Group. The objective of the Group’s human resource
management is to reward and recognise performing staff by
providing a competitive remuneration package and implementing
a performance appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and
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to promote career development and progression by appropriate
trainings and by providing opportunities within the Group for
career advancement.

Customers

The Group's principal customers are property developers and main
contractors in Hong Kong. The Group provides professional and
quality services in supply, installation and maintenance of MVAC
systems, whilst maintaining long term profitability, business and
asset growth.

Subcontractors and suppliers

The Group firmly believes that its subcontractors and suppliers
are equally important in cost control and increasing its bargaining
power on procurement of materials, which further secures its
competitiveness when bidding for tenders. The Group proactively
communicates with its subcontractors and suppliers to ensure
that they are committed to delivering high-quality and sustainable
products and services. Unless the customers require the Group
to engage subcontractors and suppliers nominated by them, the
Group will select subcontractors and suppliers from its approved
lists of subcontractors and suppliers. In addition, during the
continuance of the contracts with the subcontractors, the Group
will provide them with its internal guidelines on safety and
environmental issues and require them to follow. The Group
effectively implements the subcontractor assessment process to
monitor the performance of its subcontractors by conducting
regular site visits, evaluation on the performance of the contract
and other measures.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group believes that its business also depends on its ability
to meet the customers’ requirements in respect of safety, quality
and environmental aspects. To meet the customers’ requirements
on safety, quality and environmental aspects, the Group has
established safety, quality and environmental management
systems. Through the systematic and effective control of its
operations, compliance with safety, quality and environmental
requirements can be further assured.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
The Group mainly undertakes E&M engineering services in Hong
Kong, the Directors confirmed that during the Year, the Group
had obtained all the registrations and certifications required for
its business and operations and had complied with the applicable
laws and regulations in Hong Kong, in all material respects.

EEEEERARAT 200858 25 4

DIRECTORS REPORT EE & &

NEBEBARARFNET UEBEE
W R E R E T ERASENE R
EERET -

5F

AEENEZEFREANDEERBLAE
AR o AKBERHE RERREERE
RN ZERFHER T EREEEXEREG R
BHhsRERBNED EBREEEER -

TERERRER
REBEREED 6 R KRR 0K AT S &
RAENEBHHNZRELNLRAEEE -
REEHEANE-SZREZRFN - ARE
FEAR ) B KRB B AR R (R F AR
RNBEERRRTBHNERMRY - BRIE
EPERAKBEZREREN D B MHEE
B ARAAKERNEBERTNY BRE K
HERBERRESBRRERER - I
HAOBBHENE ARESAREFREELNE
BHASL 2 RREEERSILERRES
B-AEEEREETHMEHLLR  FHAOR
HipfEEmRIR - ARAT O BEFERF
NERDBRENKRR -

BREHRRRERE
AEBAEEEBTIRRAEBED R

BEPFERE: EBERRRITENENR - B
REPEZZ2 HERREITHENER K
SEEYRE HELRREESE - EB6

HEBLENRGERARER  AEEB
NE-—THERETZE BENREEL-

BETHBEERRER
FEBEBREERERETIRRY - £F
MR RAFE ASEDEREEHRE
EMBENMASERRE TERMAEX
FEETEEOERARKOES -



Accel Group Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020

DIRECTORS REPORT EE & &

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations of the
Group may affect the Group’s financial position and prospects.
The Group has been focusing on the control of risks and
uncertainties with the aim of understanding and addressing the
concerns of stakeholders. Key risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group are listed below:

- the revenue is mainly derived from E&M engineering
projects which are non-recurrent in nature and any failure
of our Group to secure new projects would affect our
operations and financial results;

- error or inaccurate estimation of project execution
timeframe or project costs may result in cost overruns and
may adversely affect our revenue and profitability;

- reliance on the major customers;

- the revenue and profit margin are subject to fluctuations
driven by various factors such as variation orders and the
recoverability of contract assets, and the past revenue and
profit margin may not be indicative of our future financial
performance; and

- may not be able to bill and receive the full amount of trade
receivables, retention receivables and contract assets, if
progress payment or retention money is not paid in full and
on time, the liquidity position may be adversely affected.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past four financial years is set out on page 7 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to the Shareholders in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association
amounted to HK$226,022,000.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 65 of this annual report and note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ko Lai Hung

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Mei Lan

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Ms. Tse Ka Wing
Mr. Ho Chi Shing

Pursuant to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association, Mr. Ko Lai Hung and Ms. Cheung Mei Lan shall retire
at the 2020 AGM and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for
re-election.

Information regarding the Directors’ and chief executive's
emoluments are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

For details of the Directors’ profiles, please see the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the
information of the Directors since the date of the 2019 interim
report of the Company required to be disclosed in this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of (a) Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1941) and (b) Wasion Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3393) with effect from 17 February 2020 and 18 June 2020,
respectively and resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Guangdong Tannery Limited (Stock Code: 1058) with
effect from 19 June 2020.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and has duly reviewed the confirmation of
independence of each of the INEDs. The Company, based on
such confirmations, considers that all of the INEDs continue to
be independent.

S EEERAERAR  2020F £ 27 4

DIRECTORS REPORT EE & &

5%
AEEREERFHRAL EEMT

BITES

BRIELE
(EEFRTTIH A

REMZ L

HHTES
=& EE

BYFHITES
BR S 3 S
AEmEL L
fa] 7380 4 4

B&)

BIEABESRAMMAKSEME - 520E
EHERREBLZTEN2020FEFRFHAFEFAS
FERE TRHAERBEEESERET -

FREZERERTRABNMEERE N
BB mERM 0 -

ESERE
ARMEFEENE HLNAFRE
ERERERE] -

=k

ESZRMERN

1B98_ ET MBI E1351B() 5 - AARIARAL
B R B2019F R RE B EFE K
BRIIMT:

PR & 2 S0 AE 5220202 A17H & 20206 6 418H
DRAEEZEAQEEEEITERAR AR (K
MRS 11941 R(b)E BB IR IR B R AR (AR DR
9% 0 3393) MBI IEHITES - WiN20209F6 7
19EBEEEHEARAF (BRMHMAH : 1058)
B IEMITES -

BRE S 7D

ARABME SIS RTER R LD
RIS EE B SN ERE - X
79 %%Xﬁj#%ﬁ§$mﬁ4%ﬁ%
2. RARSRAE AANRAREBY
#ﬁﬁé%%ﬁ%ﬁiAio



Accel Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORT ZEE & &

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-
election at the 2020 AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be (a) notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); (b) recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code were as follows:
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Long position in the Shares REBRBNER
Nature of Number of Percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity interests Shares held shareholding
Exps 287 EmitE iEsT: g ¢ B L i
Mr. Ko (Note) Interest in controlled corporation  Corporate interest 600,000,000 75%
CEAACES) REGEEER EEER 600,000,000 75%
Ms. Cheung (Note) Interest of spouse Family interest 600,000,000 75%
9% 22+ (P 3E) [ ¥ RIGER 600,000,000 75%
Note: The 600,000,000 Shares are held by Lightspeed Limited Hf#E: 600,000,0000% f% 5 J5 i Lightspeed Limited

("Lightspeed”), which is beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Ko
and 30% by Ms. Cheung. Under the SFO, Mr. Ko is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Lightspeed and Ms. Cheung,
spouse of Mr. Ko, is deemed to be interested in the Shares
deemed to be held by Mr. Ko.
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Long position in the ordinary shares of
associated corporation
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REBLIE2EBRNEFR

Name of
Name of associated Number of Percentage of
Directors corporation Capacity Nature of interests shares held shareholding
EENA HBZEEE 546 EEME FERBHE REBDL
Mr. Ko (Note) Lightspeed Beneficial owner and interest of ~ Personal interest and family 200 100%
spouse interest
= 5 A (BT 3E) Lightspeed En#AARLEBER AAEZRREER 200 100%
Ms. Cheung Lightspeed Beneficial owner and interest of ~ Personal interest and family 200 100%
(Note) spouse interest
&+ (M) Lightspeed EnBBAREBER BARE S kK IEER 200 100%
Note: Lightspeed is the holding company of the Company and is an  HfiE: Lightspeed & &R Q& Z % % A &) & & 3
associated corporation within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. K B E & B S XV BB AT S E B AR B A ] o
Lightspeed is beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Ko and 30% Lightspeed@m st E R KFkZ + (S E 2B
by Ms. Cheung, spouse of Mr. Ko, respectively. BRI EmBEAFT0% KR30% °
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the B EXFAT#HFESIN - M20206F3A31H ' ESE
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests ZHARRZRE TR A BRAAR & H R E

or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be (a)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO;
or (c) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, so far as our Directors are aware, the
following person(s)/entity(ies) (other than a Director or the chief
executive of the Company) had, or were taken or deemed to have
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which were required to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the Shares

Nature of
interests

BEiEME

Name of Shareholder Capacity

BRER g4

Beneficial owner

ESlAA

Lightspeed (Note)
Lightspeed (fff &%)

Note: Lightspeed is beneficially owned as to 70% by Mr. Ko and 30%
by Ms. Cheung, spouse of Mr. Ko, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Company had
not been notified by any other person(s)/entity(ies) (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which were
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
of the Company was approved for adoption pursuant to a written
resolution of all of our shareholders passed on 18 September
2019 for the purpose of providing an incentive or reward
to the eligible participants for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. The
Board is entitled at any time and from time to time grant options
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to any full-time or part-
time employees, consultants or potential employees, consultants,
executives or officers (including executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) of our
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any suppliers, customers,
consultants, agents, advisers, business partner or service providers
who, in the sole opinion of our Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries. The
Directors were authorised to grant options to subscribe for
Shares and to allot, issue and deal with the Shares pursuant to
the exercise of options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and to take all such steps as may be necessary and/or desirable
to implement and give effect to the Share Option Scheme. The
maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme limit is 80,000,000 Shares, which represented 10% of
the issued Shares (i) immediately upon completion of the Share
Offer and the capitalisation issue in relation to the Listing; and
(i) as at the date of this annual report.

Personal interest

(EPN ¥

REBROHPHER
Number of Percentage of
Shares held shareholding
FERG#E REBDL
600,000,000 75%
600,000,000 75%

M5t Lightspeedmm L R L T (B EZE

BRI EBERHEBT0%K30% °
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Unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders in general
meeting, the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of all options granted to an eligible participant under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue within any 12-month
period. Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) is required to be approved by the INEDs. Unless
otherwise approved by the Shareholders in general meeting and/
or such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules,
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and proposed to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or any INEDs or their respective associates under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the Shares in issue; and (i) having an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant.

The Board may, at its discretion, determine the minimum period
for which the option has to be held before it can be exercised,
and the period during which an option may be exercised.
However, no options shall be exercised ten years after they have
been granted. The subscription price of a Share in respect of a
particular option shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotations sheets on the date of the grant of the option, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant of
the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up
to the date of this annual report, no share options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year or as at 31 March 2020 was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such right during the Year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following transactions with the
connected persons of the Company during the Year.

Provision of subcontracting service by Yuk Shing
to Chit Tat

During the Year, Yuk Shing Advertising & Decoration Engineering
Co. ("Yuk Shing”) acted as a subcontractor providing painting
service and information technology maintenance service to Chit
Tat.

As Yuk Shing is a sole proprietorship owned by Mr. Ko Lai Ming,
a brother of Mr. Ko, a brother-in-law of Ms. Cheung and an
uncle of Mr. CK Ko, he is a connected person of the Company
and the transaction constituted a connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Provision of electrical control equipment by
Mibuka to Chit Tat

During the Year, Mibuka Denki Electrical Controls Limited
("Mibuka”) supplied to Chit Tat electrical control equipment
for E&M engineering works, including but not limited to, push
buttons, control relays and light switches. As Mibuka is 52%
owned by Mr. Ko and 48% owned by an independent third party,
it is a connected person of the Company and the transaction
constituted a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Employment agreements between Chit Tat and
connected employees

Chit Tat employs certain employees who are connected persons
of the Company and the employments constituted connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
the connected employees were listed below.

Name and connected relationship

Mr. Cheung Choi On is a brother of Ms. Cheung, a brother-
in-law of Mr. Ko and an uncle of Mr. CK Ko, he is therefore a
connected person.
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Mr. Wong Kai Chau is a brother-in-law of Ms. Cheung and an
uncle of Mr. CK Ko, he is therefore a connected person.

Mr. Chow Kin To is a nephew of Mr. Ko and a cousin of Mr. CK
Ko, he is therefore a connected person.

Ms. Ko Karlie is a niece of Mr. Ko and a cousin of Mr. CK Ko,
she is therefore a connected person.

Mr. Wong Hau Wai is a nephew of Ms. Cheung and a cousin of
Mr. CK Ko, he is therefore a connected person.

Ms. Wong Hoi Yan is a niece of Ms. Cheung and a cousin of Mr.
CK Ko, she is therefore a connected person.

Ms. Wong Hoi Ki is a niece of Ms. Cheung and a cousin of Mr.
CK Ko, she is therefore a connected person.

Rental agreement between Chit Tat and Shing
Chak (the “Shing Chak Rental Agreement”)

Chit Tat leased a property from Shing Chak Development
Limited (“Shing Chak"”) for its business operations, including
administration office and storage of documents up to 30 June
2019. As Shing Chak is wholly owned by Mr. Ko, it is a connected
person of the Company and the transaction constituted a
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Rental agreement between Chit Tat and Milan
(the "Milan Rental Agreement”)

Chit Tat leased a property from Milan Development Limited
("Milan”) for its business operations, including administration
office and storage of documents up to 30 June 2019. As Milan
is wholly owned by Ms. Cheung, it is a connected person of the
Company and the transaction constituted a connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to note 29(a) to the consolidated financial statements
for further details. With respect to the above continuing
connected transactions (other than the Shing Chak Rental
Agreement and the Milan Rental Agreement, which have
terminated before the Listing Date), the Company confirms
that (i) such continuing connected transactions are exempted
from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements applicable under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules; and (ii) it has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
disclosed above, none of the related party transactions set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements falls under the
definition of connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” above and in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance, to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or a connected entity of a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE BETWEEN
THE GROUP AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
SUBSIDIARIES

For particulars of the contracts of significance between the Group
and the Controlling Shareholders or their respective subsidiaries
or the contracts of significance for the provision of services to
the Group by the Controlling Shareholders or their respective
subsidiaries, please see the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” above and note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into by the Group or existed during the Year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates had any interests in a
business, apart from the business of the Group, which competes
or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group or has any other conflict of interest with the Group
which would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

Non-competition undertaking

In order to avoid any possible future competition between the
Group and each of the Controlling Shareholders, each of the
Controlling Shareholders as a covenantor (the “Covenantor”) has
executed a deed of non-competition (the "Deed”) in favour of
the Company (for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries),
pursuant to which, each of the Covenantors undertakes, inter alia,
that it/he/she will not, and will use its/his/her best endeavours to
procure, its/his/her close associates (other than any member of the
Group) not to, whether directly or indirectly, whether for profit
or not, participate in or engage in any business which, directly or
indirectly, competes or may compete with the Group’s business.
For details, please refer to the prospectus of the Company dated
27 September 2019.
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The INEDs have reviewed on the compliance with the terms of the
Deed and considered that the Covenantors have complied with
the terms of the Deed and the enforcement of the undertakings
contained therein by the parties thereto.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for its Directors and officers. The
relevant provisions in the Articles of Association were in force
during the Year and as at the date of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was set
up by the Board upon the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence. The emolument of the Directors are determined
by the Board based on recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to eligible persons, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association or
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the Period
and up to the date of this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$1.5 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable to
the Group's five largest customers accounted for 84.3% of the
Group's total revenue and the revenue from its largest customer
accounted for 35.9% of its total revenue.

In addition, the Group’s purchases attributable to its five largest
suppliers accounted for 67.2% of the Group’s total purchases and
the purchases from its largest supplier accounted for 35.8% of
its total purchases.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates or
any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the total number of issued Shares) had
any interests in any of the Group's five largest customers or the
Group's five largest suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its Shares, nor did the
Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such
Shares during the Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of corporate governance report are set out on pages 38
to 54 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, there were no significant events occurred after 31
March 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

RANRERE

BEADAREOAMARRBEERNAEF
BAMAAT  ARARERUREEAF
BEH-EERETRAIRTNRADRG

I & o

,;,\%? ITA
AEBEARFEELREEBRISEEET °

FEXFRMHER

AEE AEEBNAAREFPEMLKZ AN
AREFBIWZEER843%  MAEBEBHZA
EPHW B ER359% °

AN - AN E R TR FE P RS A R B 4h AR
EEATRENGT2%  MKkE A AN ER"Y
HEREBREN3S8% -

REE HBEES WENETBEAXE
MERBEEMRAERDETRN L
5% A E)RAKEETAARTFPRAKEE
MAREEETHEAEMNES

BE HEIWEARALHESE

RAERE - ARR A EEREERBKD - AR
A HEEAMBARTEBERHEEAE
B o

TEER

TRERBEFBANAFREIBESLA -

MEHEBREMN

K 47 A B 7% 3R K MY 5E34F7 % B& 4D » 202043
A3BENEEZEAFHREHHERLEFERE
%o



EEEEERARAT 20058 37 4

DIRECTORS REPORT EE & &

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS EHNFEXSE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results of the EXZESCDEMANEEE E202043A31H
Group for the year ended 31 March 2020. IFFENFEEE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B % BED

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year ZAEBERAFENGZEHFERERCHEE
have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire =R & 5HEI1TE®Z - =180 2020F K HiE
and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2020 FAERET  HEFAERIBEEERE -
AGM.

On behalf of the Board REXEZS
Ko Lai Hung T ITHBRERTESE
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director ERE

Hong Kong, 23 June 2020 HA - 20206 H23H
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EXELRHE

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholders’ values
through good corporate governance. The Directors recognise
the importance of incorporating elements of good corporate
governance in the management structures, internal control and
risk management procedures of the Group so as to achieve
effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

As the Shares were initially listed on the Stock Exchange on 18
October 2019, the CG Code was not applicable to the Company
for the period from 1 April 2019 to 17 October 2019, being
the date immediately before the Listing Date. The Company has
adopted and, save for the deviation from code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code as disclosed in this report, has complied with all
applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the
Period.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on each of
the Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied
with the Model Code during the Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group's values
and standards and ensures that the requisite financial and
human resources support is in place for the Group to achieve its
objectives. The functions performed by the Board include but are
not limited to formulating the Group’s business and investment
plans and strategies, deciding all significant financial (including
major capital expenditure) and operational issues, developing,
monitoring and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance
practices and all other functions reserved to the Board under
the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association.
The Board has established Board committees and has delegated
to these Board committees various responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. The responsibilities of these
Board committees include monitoring the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensuring that appropriate internal
control and risk management systems are in place. The Board may
from time to time delegate certain functions to management of
the Group if and when considered appropriate. The management
is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and other duties
assigned to it from time to time.
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The Directors have full access to information of the Group and
the management has an obligation to supply the Directors with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable the Directors
to perform their responsibilities. The Directors are entitled to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to holding the view that the Board
should include a balanced composition of executive Directors,
non-executive Director and INEDs so that there is a strong
independent element on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the
following six Directors, of which the INEDs in aggregate represent
50% of the Board members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ko Lai Hung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Mei Lan

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit

INEDs

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Ms. Tse Ka Wing
Mr. Ho Chi Shing

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Mr. Ko, the Chairman, an executive Director and the CEQ, is the
spouse of Ms. Cheung who is an executive Director. Mr. Ko and
Ms. Cheung are the parent of Mr. CK Ko, the non-executive
Director. Save as disclosed above, there was no financial, business,
family or other material relationship among the Directors during
the Period.

The INEDs have brought in a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving
on various Board committees, all INEDs will continue to make
various contributions to the Company.
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Throughout the Period, the Company had three INEDs, meeting
the requirements of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs
must represent at least one-third of the Board members, and
that at least one of the INEDs has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence in writing from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation and not
aware of any adverse event, the Company considers that all the
INEDs are independent and have met the independence guidelines
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from the Listing Date
to the date of this annual report.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

Each of the Directors has received a formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and is fully aware of the director’s
responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
other legal and regulatory requirements and the Company’s
business and governance policies. During the Year, each of the
Directors named under the paragraph headed “Composition”
above attended a training seminar arranged by the Company’s
Hong Kong legal advisers on directors’ responsibilities.

The Company will from time to time fund and arrange suitable
training to all Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in relation to their duties and responsibilities, such that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. All
Directors are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses
at the Company’s expense and they have been requested to
provide the Company with their training records. According to
the training records maintained by the Company, the continuous
professional development programmes received by each of the
Directors during the Year is summarised as follows:

Name of Directors ESHE
Mr. Ko mEE
Ms. Cheung 9K 22 &
Mr. CK Ko =SIEAEE
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZE A&
Ms. Tse Ka Wing HEART
Mr. Ho Chi Shing A& %k &
A: attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars,
briefings, conferences, forums and workshops
B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,

general business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and
responsibilities
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Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

From the Company’s financial year commencing on 1 April 2020
onwards, the Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with notice given to the Directors
at least 14 days in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice
will be given in a reasonable time in advance. The Directors are
allowed to include any matter in the agenda that is required for
discussion and resolution at the Board meeting. To enable the
Directors to be properly briefed on issues arising at each of the
Board meetings and to make informed decisions, an agenda and
the accompanying Board papers will be sent to all Directors at
least three days before the intended date of the Board meeting,
or such other period as agreed. The Company Secretary is
responsible for keeping all Board meetings’ minutes. Draft and
final versions of the Board meetings’ minutes will be circulated to
the Directors for their comment and records respectively within a
reasonable time after each Board meeting and the final version
is open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Board held two meetings during the Period and, amongst
other matters, considered and approved the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2019.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings during
the Period is as follows:

Name of Directors
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No. of Attendance/No. of Meetings

HERE, BB RE

Mr. Ko mEE
Ms. Cheung 9K 2
Mr. CK Ko =SIEAEE
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZE XA
Ms. Tse Ka Wing WAL
Mr. Ho Chi Shing Al 3 5% &

During the Period, the Company did not hold any general meeting
of the Shareholders.

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2
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Board Diversity Policy

During the Year, the Board has adopted a policy of the
Board diversity and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the same.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of a diversity
of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. All
the appointments of the Board members shall be based on the
positive contribution to be brought by the proposed candidate
to the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its affiliated companies.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will
be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Ko is the Chairman
and the CEO. He has been managing the Group’s business and
supervising the overall operations of the Group since 2000. The
Board considers that vesting the roles of the Chairman and the
CEO in Mr. Ko is beneficial to the management and business
development of the Group and will provide a strong and
consistent leadership to the Group. The Board will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of the Chairman and the
CEO at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into
account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 18 September 2019
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Audit Committee comprises two INEDs,
namely Ms. Tse Ka Wing and Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, and the non-
executive Director Mr. CK Ko. Ms. Tse is the chairperson of the
Audit Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include
but are not limited to:

o making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor, and handling any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

o discussing with the auditors the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;

o developing and implementing a policy on the engagement

of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;

o monitoring the integrity of the Group’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

o discussing the risk management and internal control
systems with the Company’s management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have effective
systems. This discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function;

o reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices; and

o reviewing arrangements employees of the Group can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.
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During the Period, one Audit Committee meeting was held and,
amongst other matters, considered and approved for presentation
to the Board for consideration and approval the draft unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
six months ended 30 September 2019.

The attendance of each Director in the capacity of a member
of the Audit Committee at the meeting during the Period is as
follows:

Name of Directors EENE

Ms. Tse Ka Wing HEmALT
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat RS STE
Mr. CK Ko =EGEEE

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 18 September
2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Ho Chi Shing and Mr. Chan
Cheong Tat, and an executive Director Mr. Ko. Mr. Ho is the
chairperson of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include but are not limited to:

o making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing a
remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

o making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. This should include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;
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o making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the Period, no Remuneration Committee meeting was
held.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 18 September
2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
CG Code. The written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. The Nomination Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat and Mr. Ho
Chi Shing, and an executive Director Mr. Ko. Mr. Chan is the
chairperson of the Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include but are not limited to:

o reviewing the structure, size, composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Group's corporate
strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and making recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o assessing the independence of the INEDs and reviewing
the INEDs' annual confirmations on their independence,
and making disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report of the Company;

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive
of the Group; and

o reviewing the Board diversity policy periodically and making
disclosure of the policy or a summary of the policy in the

corporate governance report of the Company annually.

During the Period, no Nomination Committee meeting was held.
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Nomination Policy
Nomination Procedures

(1) The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a
meeting, and invite nominations of candidates from Board
members (if any), for consideration by the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee may also nominate
candidates for its consideration.

(2)  In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such individual and
make recommendations for the Board’'s consideration and
approval.

(3) In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s)
of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation, for the proposed candidates to stand for
re-election at a general meeting.

(4) The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting.

Shareholders may also nominate a person to stand for election as
a Director at a general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association and applicable laws and regulations. The procedures
for such proposal are posted on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Selection Criteria

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of
any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall consider a variety of factors including without limitation the
following in assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@)  Reputation for integrity;

(b)  Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the E&M
engineering industry and other relevant sectors;

(0 Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest and
attention to the Company’s business;
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Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and experience;

The ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success,

Compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment
of an INED; and

Any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code, which include:

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board,;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors; and

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect
from 18 September 2019. Each of the INEDs and the non-
executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing on
18 September 2019.
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None of the Directors has a service contract or letter of
appointment with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association. At each
AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed
for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include (so
far as necessary to obtain the number required) any Director who
wishes to retire and not to offer himself/herself for re-election.
Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have been
the longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his/her appointment and shall be subject to re-election at
such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report for the Year by band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HKS)

1,000,001 to 1,500,000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was engaged
as the Group’s independent auditor.

The remuneration paid/payable to Deloitte for audit and non-
audit services in respect of the Year is set out below:

B 3 #x BUED % A
RAEE - B8« BIE W5 &H4117 (BE))
B {F 575 5 (B8 ST A% AT -

RAFEE  BEBEALFERARBEN BN
BN EHINDT

Fee paid/payable

B EANEH

HK$'000

Services FHB T

Audit services — Annual audit EiTRE - FEER 1,200
Non-audit services IEEETIRTS

- Tax services fee - MRS E 41

- Other services - H b AR 300

Total BET 1,541

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, Deloitte has stated in the independent auditor’s
report its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks that the Company is willing to
take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Board oversees management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.
The Board acknowledges that such risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate
the risks, of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Group has established an enterprise risk
management policy in order to provide sound and effective risk
management. This sets out a framework for the identification,
analysis, evaluation, treatment, monitoring and reporting of the
Group's key risks, with a view to supporting the achievement of
the Group’s overall strategic objectives. The Company does not
have an internal audit department. The Board currently takes
the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
Group’s business. The need for an internal audit function will be
reviewed from time to time.
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In view of the Group’s business and scale of operations, and in
order to adopt the most cost-effective method of conducting
periodic reviews of the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems, the Board has engaged an independent consultant firm
to execute the internal audit function. Independent consultant
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and financial reporting procedures, systems and control
for the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 in accordance
with the requirements under code provision C.2 of the CG Code,
according to the scope of review agreed and approved by the Audit
Committee. The reports issued by the independent consultant firm
were reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board and no major
issue was raised for improvement.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group covering all material controls, including
financial, operational, strategic and compliance controls and has
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Board considers
that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are adequate and effective. The Board expects that a review
of the risk management and internal control systems will be
performed annually.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the SFO
and the Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside
information should be announced promptly when it is the subject
of a decision. The procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information are as follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” published
by the SFC in June 2012;

o the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of
information to the public through channels such as financial
reporting, public announcements and the Company’s
website;

o the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

o the Group has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the Group's
affairs, so that only the executive Directors, the Company
Secretary and the chief financial officer of the Company are
authorised to communicate with parties outside the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Tak Sun Sammy (“Mr. Sammy Chan”) was appointed
as the Company Secretary with effect from 24 January 2019.

Mr. Sammy Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the Year pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

All members of the Board can have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The appointment and removal
of the Company Secretary has been/will be subject to the Board’s
approval.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

Shareholders are welcome to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be
discussed at Shareholders’ meeting. Proposals may be sent to
the Board or the Company Secretary by written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a resolution
may, however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the
"EGM") in accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene an EGM” set out below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, including
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholder(s) who wish(es) to convene an EGM for the
purpose of making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM
must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned (the “Requisitionist(s)”) at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Requisition must state clearly the name(s) of the
Requisitionist(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the proposed
agenda.
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The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and
shareholding of the Requisitionist(s) will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition
is found to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene an EGM and/or include the proposal(s)
made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Requisitionist(s) at the
EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Requisitionist(s) will be advised of the outcome and accordingly,
the Board or the Company Secretary will not call for an EGM nor
include the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the
Requisitionist(s) at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board
or the Company Secretary fails to proceed to convene an EGM,
the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board or the
Company Secretary to convene the EGM shall be reimbursed to
the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
or their notification of change of correspondence address or their
dividend/distribution instructions to the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by post to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong at Unit Nos. 709-711, 7th Floor, The Octagon, No. 6
Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary will forward
the communications relating to:

1. the matters within the Board’s purview to the executive
Directors;

2. the matters within a Board committee’s area of
responsibility to the chairperson of the appropriate
committee; and

3. ordinary business matter, such as suggestions, enquiries and
customer complaints to the appropriate management of the
Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy that in recommending
or declaring dividends and has the discretion to declare
and distribute dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.
The Board shall also take into account the following factors of
the Group when considering the declaration or recommendation
of dividends:

(@  earnings and financial condition;

(b)  financial results;

() cash flow situation;

(d)  business conditions and strategies;

(e)  future operations requirements;

(f)  capital requirements and expenditure plans;

(g) interests of Shareholders;

(h)  the general economic and political conditions and other
external factors that may have an impact on the future
business and financial performance of the Group;

(i) any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

()  any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

Depending on the financial conditions of the Group and the

conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be

proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial year or
period:

(@ interim dividend;

(b)  final dividend;

(c)  special dividend; and

(d) any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate.
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Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to
Shareholders’ approval. The Company may declare and pay
dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. Any dividend unclaimed shall be
forfeited and shall revert to the Company in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association. There
can be no assurance that dividends of such amount or any amount
will be declared or distributed each year or in any year.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders communication policy
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders will have
equal and timely access to information about the Company in
order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an
informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the
Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through
the Company’s financial reports, circulars, AGMs and EGMs
that may be convened as well as all the published disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Except for the adoption of the amended and restated
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association to
comply with the applicable legal and regulatory requirements
(including the Listing Rules) on 18 September 2019 in anticipation
of the Listing, there was no change in the constitutional
documents of the Company during the Year.

The Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association is
available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ACCEL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Accel
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 63
to 144, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS EREEREE

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional FAEEBZEHEIRERMANZEHNE  R5
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the REZEHMGAVEREIBEEEMNEE -
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These ZEEBEREMIBXREM LA M BHREK L5
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the KK MOERNBR TEE M FH A
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our T &mMZEEHIEHEFER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion of

these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HREXRER REZTRMAEEHERERSTENIR

Revenue recognition from provision of electrical and
mechanical ("E&M") engineering services

RERAKES(HE)IRBRBENRSERI

We identified the revenue recognition from provision of Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition
E&M engineering services as a key audit matter due to for provision of E&M engineering services included:
its significance to the consolidated financial statements A EIRERE TERENKEEROEF B2
as a whole and management’s estimate is involved in LA &IA

determining the revenue when contracts progress.

BMERERERSIERBO W S ERAASEESE o  Obtaining an understanding on how the

EZEE RAEASHUHGZGUBGRAERBREEE AL management recognises the revenue from the
EETARAERERAKREIREBENME - provision of E&M engineering services and how

the total budget costs are determined;
As set out in notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial o THREREEHERAREIRHEESE TERE KR
statements, the Group derived its revenue from provision FEANNBFEERABEEN TR
of E&M engineering services over time and recognised
HK$522,332,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020. e Agreeing the project contract sum and

Revenue from provision of such services is recognised values of variation orders, where applicable,
over time using input method, i.e. based on actual costs to the relevant signed contracts and the
incurred by the Group to date compared with total correspondence with customers on a sample
budgeted cost for the project to estimate the revenue basis;

recognised during the year. . BHEEANSERIREHESEE(WER)
WMiRa MRS KRemE BEEEWRRRERE HEFAERSHNREZTFHNBAETHERR
ERHEONEBMEHOKE TRRS - L RE E2020 #

F3H31H |- FE#ER522,332,0008 7T ° R B4t it 58
IREMEN=SREERBMOERFERAE A LR - Bl o Assessing the accuracy of actual total costs

BEESEELSRILICDRAENERKAEIBENETE incurred for the year by checking against the
BRAETHER  UEARFERERN WS - supporting documents including the payment

certificates or invoices issued by the major
subcontractors, suppliers or vendors, on a sample
basis;

s WMEBRHIZNOH - HEANERLANS
BUEXH (BRENRERALER) UFERFE
EELRBERKARNERE:

3 Checking the total budget costs against the
underlying contracts, quotation and other
correspondence with subcontractors, suppliers or
vendors of individual projects on a sample basis;
and

e REEMNEENHBESLY mERESBRE -
Tﬁfﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁm@ﬂ R EREXK
XN

o Assessing the accuracy of revenue recognised
for the year by recalculating the revenue based
on the percentage of completion of the contract
based on the input method.

e FRBRBBAZENAEENANTKESL
Bl EE - AP FE R S A E R -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HREXRER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

ESRURAREGNEEZRENRE

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter due to their
significance of trade receivables and contract assets to
the Group's consolidated financial statements and the
involvement of subjective judgment and management
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL")
of the Group's trade receivables and contract assets at
the end of the reporting period.
BHMEEIREREREHNEEZRENEER—
HHERERETE DHREFRRRBERGHNEE
Y BERENGAMBEBRARTESKERBEART
i ESEEEFIRURERGHNEENTEHEEEBR
(AU GEEBRK IR FTBHE REBEMT -

As set out in notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s trade receivables and
contract assets amounting to approximately HK$41.7
million and HK$115.2 million, which represented
approximately 11% and 31%, respectively, of total assets
of the Group as at 31 March 2020.

WMEREMBEHREMFI7TRISHEH - EBEEENEFSEW
REREHNEEARMNTABETRING2EEET 5
AlME BEEER2020F3A31BBEEMNLI11%K31% °

AREBEZEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RN EFNMABRRARESNER

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of trade receivables and contract assets included:
BHMERESIRRRBERGNEEZRMENEREF
B

o Understanding key controls on how the
management of the Group estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables and contract
assets;

e TH BESEEBREMGIGESIEKRFELED
BEBBRE T A0 B85

o Testing the integrity of information used by
the management of the Group for impairment
assessment, including the ageing analysis of
trade receivables and past due history of debtors
as at 31 March 2020, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis
with the relevant construction agreements,
certificates issued by architects, surveyors
or other representatives appointed by the
customers, settlement records of debtors and
other supporting documents;

e BBAKOMANMERIIEEREMEEEIRE &
PREMEERM AISMKEMRKREENE
A RS B A B B Aty S R 1 SO AT R R
ik BEARERERENEMBERD
TR - BIER2020F3A31BE S EKFIEN
BRIk D IMTREBANBIBESE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HRERERER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets

ESRUREAREGNEEZRENR

As disclosed in notes 5 and 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the Group
performs impairment assessment on individual debtor
basis to estimate the amount of lifetime ECL of trade
receivables and contract assets based on internal credit
ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or past due status
of respective debtors. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information. As disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, no impairment in respect of trade
receivables and contract assets was recognised as at 31
March 2020 and for the year then ended.

B E SRR FSRITEE Y E5EEEE
BEEBARKEROANBEETR R - ERNEHK
K /s d BRAR R - R M Bl M BR AR B R AT R E AT A
N EZRKRFBERGHNEEN 2 PENREEER
TR -GHEBERXDERBURRERBERFHRINBAE
BRINBOXEGBE  ARBABUEERNIELFAE -
MANAR S BT MR M TR 31 Pt - 7202063 A31H R B
ZFZBELEFREVTERRAERESIRBURERGNEE
BRE °

AREBEZEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RMWBTNMABRRBARENER

Challenging management’s basis and judgment
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables and contract assets as at 31 March
2020, including their identification of credit-
impaired trade receivables and contract assets,
and the basis of estimated loss rates applied on
each debtor in the impairment assessment with
reference to historical default rates and forward-
looking information; and
BREIEEETN2020F3A318 B 5 EKKE
RENEEFEEERBENEERAE B
HEREERBEESRBREBERENEENHR
LA R2OR (B 7T 18 B 5 FE R BR SR IE A R (BT B 1R R
(BERLEBEAXRAEHEERMELE R

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables and
contract assets in the consolidated financial
statements.

TGN BBRRNEBAEIRBERERERN
BEMET HAKRE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

H ft & ¥
RAREFEARBAMAR - HLENE
BERFBMZAR  HTREFRAMBRE
RBMIR UL 2 R B R s o

BHERGAMBBRRZIERL TREEM
BER - BT ARBEREAEAZEES

A
A ©
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

REMAERGEES B RRAR
FEzEE

BAWER  RHERBGAMBERRZE T
FREBNRGFRERMEBWENERR M
BREAEARE YHABREAMEENZHK
BhR & o AMERBERPIN0 0 E LB FHE
m ETERER)EL - RIS - TF
HiBE - LA AR A RE 2 AT EEM
HALTBELARERE - SERBEESKF
MRE  BETRERBERBREBRBCERIET
MBZBERRAAFTENEANERRAML -
AR AT AR RFFHFERGIE - WAER
MR EER R ERRERAETEZSTHEEM
BREEBEMELNGERK - AEHN
BRI AT AR EE K o

ERIBEE B BRI T B TIEN — 8
5 RFERTLHE  REERKBRET
R R AR - T

o  BAIMFEERNRFHERMEBEE
M mAFEERERBANRER - 5
ZERRRFRATHENEZER
NEBREREMEENEREE R
BHERMER - ARMFEAREYRE
womE EERER ERRAM -
ERAREE s L R REHERRAR
AEMEMMEANFERRAAE R SR A
HARMEMMBRERRANRR -

e THEFEZMEBMAMEE  URFE
ENEZEF BEENYIHEE BE£H
NEEZENREERER -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is K. W. Yim.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

23 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mAEEmREMEEIESR

For the year ended 31 March 2020
B Z2020F3H31H IF F/E

Year ended 31 March

HZEZ3A831ALLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T FET
Revenue I = 6 522,332 312,732
Cost of services AR 7% B 28 (406,143) (231,718)
Gross profit E 7 116,189 81,014
Other income Hfbug A 7(a) 1,395 2,121
Other gains and losses Hab gz & E1E 7(b) 88 -
Listing expenses X (7,188) (11,395)
Administrative expenses 1T X (22,097) (14,850)
Finance costs B 765 AR AN 8 (132) (628)
Profit before taxation B %i Bl v A 9 88,255 56,262
Income tax expense BT 15 i B 2 11 (15,600) (10,867)
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 A % #l| & & 1 W 25
for the year FEk 72,655 45,395
Earnings per share B AR 13
- Basic (HK¢) - EARCGE) 10.52 7.57
- Diluted (HK¢) - #5E OB 10.52 N/AA &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRR R

As at 31 March 2020
R2020F3H31H

As at 31 March

M3H31H
2020
20204
HK$’000
THE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERRB 14 3,921 3,154
Right-of-use assets FTRHEEE 15 2,788 2,483
Payments for life insurance xSke 16 6,808 6,808
Pledged bank balances B RITE 2 19 49,677 -
63,194 12,445
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables, deposits & 5 K E fib [iE W 5Kk T
and prepayments BrE RBMNHKIE 17 68,071 35,211
Contract assets BMEE 18 106,041 67,842
Pledged bank balances EHEARITE R 19 20,476 =
Bank balances and cash IRTHEBRNIR S 19 109,440 34,850
304,028 137,903
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade, retention and other payables B EMNRIE - EBER
and accruals & RE AN RN RIBA R
EsT & A 20 48,899 34,126
Contract liabilities BHAE 18 2,218 692
Taxation liabilities MIBEE 7,816 5,982
Bank loan RAITE R 21 483 1,459
Lease liabilities HEEFE 22 1,583 958
60,999 43,217
Net current assets RBEEZFE 243,029 94,686
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBARG 306,223 107,131
Non-current liabilities FEARBEE
Lease liabilities HEEFE 22 1,205 1,108
Net assets EEFE 305,018 106,023
Capital and reserves BEARGEE
Share capital f& 2 23 8,000 —*
Reserves Gk 297,018 106,023
Total equity MR 305,018 106,023
* Amount less than HK$1,000. & 31,0008 T K & B8 ©

The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 144 were $63E 1448 K 4R & B 7% 3 R E 72202066 5
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23E|5¥§$ATH:/E&T§V TS RUATES

23 June 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: - $3
Mr. Ko Lai Hung Ms. Cheung Mei Lan
BRIELE REWML L
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RAREER

For the year ended 31 March 2020

2 F2020F3H315 1 F/Z
Share Share Other  Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
BE KROEE HtRE KBEH et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TERT TER THET TERT
(Note)
(B =E)
At 1 April 2018 2018418 5,000 - (10,190) 55,942 50,752
Profit and total comprehensive 4 s Fi| & 2 1 4 &
income for the year Rk = - = 45,395 45,395
Issue of ordinary shares of R EEM A S B 31T
the Company on date of VNNCTRS S
incorporation (Note 23(i)) (FF 7E230)) = = = = =i
Issue of ordinary shares of BEHET
the Company for Vi NNCTRS S
the Reorganisation (Bt 52 R 23¢Gii))
(Notes 2 and 23(iii)) (5,000) 77,266 (72,266) = =

Waiver of an amount due to a # % EMAAR K E
shareholder of the Company 738 (Fff 5£29(d))

(Note 29(d)) - - 9,876 = 9,876
At 31 March 2019 2019437318 —* 77,266 (72,580) 101,337 106,023
Profit and total comprehensive 4 X% Fl| & 2 1 4 5%

income for the year Gk = = = 72,655 72,655

Issue of ordinary shares of the 1R # % % & 317
Company pursuant to the /NG Rl

Share Offer (Note 23(iv)) (BF 5E23(iv)) 2,000 144,000 - - 146,000
Capitalisation Issue BT

(Note 23(v)) (Mt 5£23(v) 6,000 (6,000) = = =
Share issue expenses B EITR X = (19,660) - - (19,660)
At 31 March 2020 202043 A31H 8,000 195,606 (72,580) 173,992 305,018

*

* Amounts less than HK$1,000. A 11,00078 TTH) £ 58 -

Note: The other reserve arose from: (i) deemed distribution arising from Kizt: HEMHEEXE: (R ABEEEREE
the imputed interest income on non-current interest-free advances —BARARRCGES R W 1) 1 3
to a shareholder of the Company (as defined in Note 1) amounting BB S B2 FNEERNSKANSDIE
to HK$10,190,000 in prior years; (i) issuance of ordinary shares of 10,190,000 7T : (iRt EAEBEITAA T LB
the Company for the Reorganisation amounting to HK$72,266,000 272,266,000 7T (Kt 52 & 23(iii) K (iii)
(Notes 2 and 23(iii)); and (i) deemed contribution arising from RAREREEN —BARAREREH
the waiver of an amount due to a shareholder of the Company £ 349,876,000/ st (Fff 7£29(d)) °

amounting to HK$9,876,000 (Note 29(d)).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘l'F EE i ==% %

For the year ended 31 March 2020
B Z2020%F3H31H IF F/E

Year ended 31 March

B ZE3AMBLEE
2020 2019
20205 2019
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHER THERT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFTD
Profit before taxation B 5 Bl & A 88,255 56,262
Adjustments for: HTINIEBEL A
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERKETE
equipment 609 263
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEEFRE 1,933 1,823
Gain on disposal of property, plant and LEWE  BEREHEZ
equipment W 2= (130) =
Write-off of property, plant and E Y& Lk
equipment 42 -
Interest income ) B WA (912) (270)
Reversal of over-provision of tax penalty B[O 11 F [E B0 X 7% 51 0
in respect of prior years iR BE B - (1,485)
Interest income on payments for life SN ERESHF BKA
insurance - (308)
Finance costs B 75 K AN 132 628
Operating cash flows before movements in &E & € EBATH L EH
working capital mE 89,929 56,913
Increase in trade and other receivables, Bk EMEBRRIE  &e
deposits and prepayments K T8 1< R I8 38 A0 (36,200) (15,341)
(Increase) decrease in contract assets BHEEGEM) R (44,227) 13,663
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities él\ #) 8B D) 7,554 (28,365)
Increase in trade, retention BZRMAE BN RES
and other payables and accruals Ko EAth, & 1<F
FIAA K fE 5T B I 0 15,079 1,344
Cash generated from operations KEFRRE 32,135 28,214
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid Eﬁ BEBEMFH (13,766) (19,968)
Net cash from operating activities KEEBMEREFE 18,369 8,246
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZED
Purchases of property, plant and BEME  HWEKFZE
equipment (1,418) (2,901)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME MELEZHEH
and equipment T8 21| 162 =
Placements of fixed bank deposits with FERTEIHEA=MEANU
original maturity more than three LR EERITIF R
months - (5,018)
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits with REVREZAB A=A
original maturity more than three EWEERITF K
months = 5,971
Placements of pledged bank balances FAE | IR 17 4 #h (70,153) -
Interest received B A B 912 270
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBMARSFE (70,497) (1,678)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #£& IR &

20205 F R

by =1

NiL B2

For the year ended 31 March 2020
B £2020F3H31H 1F F/E

Year ended 31 March

BZ3A31ALEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & EE
New bank loan raised MESWBEITER - 10,690
Repayments of bank borrowings BEEITER (976) (19,010)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEARE (1,548) (1,860)
Proceeds from issuance of share capital BITIRANFT 5 3R 146,000 =
Issue costs paid BT BT A (16,626) (3,034)
Interest paid B F A (132) (628)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities BY & EENFT1E (FT ) IR & /F 58 126,718 (13,842)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND BRE&RBESZEYIE M ORL)
CASH EQUIVALENTS FH 74,590 (7,274)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FHIMRE KRS EFEY
the year 34,850 42124
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND FXAMWBRERBEEEEY
OF THE YEAR 109,440 34,850
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR M eE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b5 B i B35} > 1948 T I 7T)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Accel Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company and registered in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
on 20 September 2018, and its shares have been listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 October 2019.
The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are PO Box 1350, Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands and Unit Nos. 709-711, 7/F., The Octagon, No. 6
Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong,
respectively. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the ultimate controlling parties are Mr. Ko Lai Hung (“MTr.
Ko”) and Ms. Cheung Mei Lan (“Ms. Cheung”, who is the
wife of Mr. Ko). Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung are collectively
referred to as the “Spouse”.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is principally engaged in provision of electrical
and mechanical (“E&M") engineering services typically
involving supply, installation and maintenance of mechanical
ventilation and air-conditioning (“MVAC”) systems .

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollar (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, the Group underwent a reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) which was completed on 30 November
2018. The details of the Reorganisation are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 27 September 2019. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, Lightspeed
Limited is considered as the immediate holding company of
the Group after the completion of the Reorganisation on
30 November 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B #5 $R R Bt 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries
resulting from the Reorganisation has been under the
common control of the Spouse for the period from 1 April
2018 or since their respective dates of incorporation to
the completion date of the Reorganisation and before and
after the Reorganisation, and is regarded as a continuing
entity. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared as if the Company had always been
the holding company of the Group since 1 April 2018.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 include the
results, changes in equity and cash flows of the companies
comprising the Group that have been prepared as if the
current group structure had been in existence throughout
the year ended 31 March 2019, or from their respective
dates of incorporation, where there is a shorter period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has early adopted HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS
16") in prior years and the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time in the current year:

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. ERAFMIREEITEEBMBR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEA(EBHHEREERD )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ()

("HKFRSS") (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

C A8 7 18 18 K 4 K A9 35T R AE 42
AERMBEREEN

AN 5 B30 4% 4R P AT 2 AR AR 18 1 R
EROFAIREETBERBRE R

yet effective: 8 :
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BEAYVEHREEL REEL
F175%
Amendment to HKFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Rent AV HEEL HFATARRES
Concessions® F165% M BT EHENES
RS
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business? BT RELEDR EBHHTER?
FEIWMEET
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of BV EHREEL KEHFHEEBE
and HKAS 28 Assets between an FIOHREE B NAIHEE
Investor and its Associate 512 R 25285/ HY ZErREE
or Joint Venture3 13T &gk )F &3
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material* EFEHERFE1E BEEENTFE R
and HKAS 8 RE B AR
FESFAEET
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark BV EER FIREERF

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that have
been issued but not yet effective (continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the above new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements includes
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange of goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
the market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial
statements is determined on such basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and
measurement that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets
("HKAS 36").

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follow:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted price (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset and liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

4.

EARETTHER@®
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. has power over the investee; . ISR EHRITEEN
. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its . H2mEEEHRNEKM AR

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs
to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception or modification date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases, if any, that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon exercising
purchase options, the cost of the relevant right-of-use assets
and the related accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss are transferred to property, plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

4.

BEAEFHE@®

Leases (continued) HE @
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERBAHEAE
Right-of-use assets (continued) 12 /A 1& & & (%)

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially measured
at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Lease liabilities HEEE
At the commencement date of a lease, the Group REERKAH  ANEEERZABRIM
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present WEENFREERARFEHESE -

value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

4.

BEAEFHE@®

Leases (continued) HEm
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERBAHEAE
Lease modifications HEEH

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

B ATIER  AEEKHESEHRE
REUHEEARK:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease by . EeEBIMAGE R —IEK A 48
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; HMEECEMNBEREESE: &
and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an . HMERESEM: BNzeBEHEE

amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualified assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRSs require or permit the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payments reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to retained profits. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payments reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B #5 $R R Bt 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the
lease payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B #5 $R R Bt 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers ("HKFRS 15”). Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

4.

BEAEFHE@®

€T A
SREERSRABNERTERAT
BAMGEXHIETHTBRER -

TRMEENEBEABYVIZRAFES
E-EREBRE BV HREERFI55H
EPEA e (BB BHREERFS
RDURAERERFEHONEZ R
ARSI - WENBETEREERSHE
BEEERENRSKRA  RUITER
Rt ATREEXTBRABHRFERL
HEREEXTRABN R FEFHR
(@A)

ERANREZRHRMREGESREEN
B B 5 B 5 A A K oy B A B MR R R
BRXNTE - BERMNELSRIT R
B RRRERA RN T (BEE
REREEMNENMEENAEKRER
RER - XPKRAREAM G ERITE)
ReREENSRABRFFHIBE
HAM (0@ ) ZE W R 3R 2= AR 3 (B /O A

;2:(0

ETHEE
EHEEDBERERESE

W02 AT R 0 R 7 L1 R 0
AEE

s REXBEARNFEEREE
MEBNSUMENAERE &

s BHKRFIIBNETAHNRSE
MEERINAEMAREENAK
EHE -

=



BEEHERARAT 200FF% 89 4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & B #5 $R R Bt 5%

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets and other item (subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9)

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
and other receivables, refundable rental deposits, payments
for life insurance, pledged bank balances, bank balances)
and other item (contract assets) which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of
future conditions.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item (subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (continued)

The Group always

recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables and contract assets without significant financing

component.
individually.

The ECL on these assets are assessed

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item (subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if: (i) it has a low risk of
default; (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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SR 5 A 2

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item (subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade and other receivables, when the amounts
are over five years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other item (subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9) (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
and other receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.
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=) AN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

4.

BEAEFHE@®

Financial instruments (continued) £/ T BEwm
Financial assets (continued) THEE®E)
Derecognition of financial assets RIFER DB E

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debts or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group
entity are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade, retention and other
payables and bank loan are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Revenue recognition from provision of E&M
engineering services

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of
E&M engineering services according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as well
as the progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation measured based on input method.
Notwithstanding that the management reviews and revises
the estimates of both contract revenue and costs for the
E&M engineering services as the contract progresses, the
actual outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue
and costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and
this will affect the revenue and profit recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
recognised revenue amounted to HK$522,332,000 (2019:
HK$312,732,000).

Estimated impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets

The management of the Group performs impairment
assessment on individual debtor basis to estimate the
amount of ECL of trade receivables and contract assets
based on internal credit ratings, ageing, repayment history
and/or past due status of respective debtors. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information. At every reporting date, the internal
credit rating and historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL is disclosed in note 31.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets were HK$41,730,000
(2019: HK$29,418,000), and HK$115,150,000 (2019:
HK$70,923,000), respectively. No impairment in respect of
trade receivables and contract assets was made as at 31
March 2020 (2019: Nil) and for the year then ended (2019:
Nil).
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue of the Group arose from provision of E&M
engineering services typically rendered in Hong Kong under
long-term contracts and were recognised over time during
the year.

The Group provides E&M engineering services to customers
which are mainly landlords, construction companies and
contractors in Hong Kong private sector. All the Group’s
provision of E&M Engineering services is made directly with
the customers.

The provision of the Group’s E&M engineering services
are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.
Revenue is recognised for these construction services based
on the stage of completion of the contract using input
method.

The Group’s contracts are mainly at fixed-price and
payments are made to the Group over the provision of E&M
engineering services once such services are performed and
certified by architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers.

The Group may require certain customers to make advance
payments during the provision of E&M engineering services,
when the Group receives the advance payments before
provision of E&M engineering services, this will give rise
to contract liabilities, until the revenue recognised on the
specific contract exceeds the amount of such advances.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the
same contract, is recognised over the period in which
the provision of E&M engineering services are performed
representing the Group’s right to consideration for the
services performed because the rights are conditioned on
the relevant certification by architects, surveyors or other
representatives appointed by the customers.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the rights become unconditional upon the Group's
services certified by architects, surveyors or other
representatives appointed by the customers.

The Group’s contracts with customers normally require
it to perform the obligations (including, amongst others,
primarily rectification of defects identified) under the
contracts during the defects liability period generally for
12 to 24 months after issuance of practical completion
certificates by customers. The defect liability period serves
as an assurance that the construction services performed
comply with agreed-upon specifications and such assurance
cannot be purchased separately. 5% to 10% of each
interim payment from the customers is usually withheld by
the customers as retention receivables (as included in the
Group's contract assets) in which 50% of the retention
receivable is transferred to the trade receivables for
collection upon issuance of practical completion certificates,
and the remaining 50% of the retention receivable is
transferred to the trade receivables for collection upon
expiry of the defects liability period set out in the relevant
contracts.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations

The transaction price allocated to the remaining

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
in respect of provision of E&M engineering services as
at 31 March 2020 amounting to HK$789,564,000 (2019:
HK$907,575,000) which is expected to be recognised as
revenue in the following years:

6.

(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

ko IBES @
PTEHEFBRBHNETINRZER

R2020F3A3MBHD EEE B IREERE
TRREHOFE & E L ETECREITHE
DARBIT) MR F B HF789,564,000/%
7t (20194 : 907,575,000 7T) 8 HA #%
RATEERR AR :

2020 2019

2020 201945

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THERT

Within one year —&FR 514,772 487,228
More than one year but not —F L EETHE B F

more than two years 260,245 413,675

More than two years iR 18 R 14,547 6,672

789,564 907,575

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (the “"CODM"), regularly review
revenue recognised and costs incurred for the provision of
E&M engineering services and, therefore, considered the
Group has only one single reporting and operating segment
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

All the Group's revenue was earned from customers located
in Hong Kong and all its non-current assets (other than
financial instruments) are situated in Hong Kong.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. W#HEE 2 3PE R @)

(continued)

Revenue from customers for the year contributing over 10% RAFEEREEPIEARE B AU i
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: B1I0% R U= 0T

Year ended 31 March

BZ3A3MALEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$’000
Fi& T FET
Customers A =FEA 187,607 N/A iE A
Customers B ®FB 141,868 N/AT 3
Customers C BRC 55,900 N/AT i F
Customers D EFD N/AR i 58,627
Customers E EPE N/A R i#E 53,047
The revenue from the above customers marked with not KB LAZRBETERA(TERDNER
applicable (“N/A”) represents their revenue contributions to WaEEMASEN s P RAEER
the Group were less than 10% of the Group’s revenue in HEFEWZEN10% °

the relevant year.

7. OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. H#hg A - HtlhHZ R 518

Year ended 31 March

HZ3AMALEE
2020 2019
20205 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FER
(a) Other income (@) E b A
Rental income in respect of a carpark space  {ZHEAIETE LU A = 22
Insurance compensation for staff injury BEIXEHRREE 297 =
Interest income S A 912 270
Reversal of over-provision of tax penalty in 18 0138 1 F 5 6 B 7% &1
respect of prior years (Note) R A (M EE) - 1,485
Interest income on payment for life insurance {4 = 4 B H B0 A = 308
Others Hit 186 36
1,395 2,121
(b) Other gains and losses (b)E MW R EE
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEK
equipment Fi 2 W= 130 -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment e L E 6 (42) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND
LOSSES (continued)

Note:

The Group made provision of possible tax penalty for additional
tax assessments of Chit Tat Electrical Engineering Limited (“Chit
Tat”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in respect
of prior years. In April 2019, the Inland Revenue Department
confirmed that Chit Tat had no record of non-compliance on profits
tax matters since its incorporation and the Group's tax adviser
considered that the payment of the tax penalty became remote,
accordingly, such provision of tax penalty was reversed for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loan
Interest on lease liabilities

RITEFRF B
HEREFE

7.

(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

Hib g A - el m RS 18
()
I

AEERBAFEHARBZ—HE2ENE
ARIRERETRREAR AT (RE])HEIN
T 75 5T i AT B 0 B 7% S0 BB B 4B - 122019
F4R - BRHBEREQEFMA L AR
EEMEEMNESHEFENER  BASEHN
RISERRBSMN RS SIRAOTREERE -
Hit BEFE B RNOBEEREE2019F
3A31B EFEE D -

Bt % A% AR
Year ended 31 March
B ZEZ3A3MBLLEE

2020 2019
20205 20195
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FET
24 562
108 66

132 628
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(b %= Bt B35 - 5L E T3 7)

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBANER

Year ended 31 March
HBE3AMBLEE
2020 2019

20205 201945
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T

Profit before taxation has been arrived at B %4 Bl i A J5 30 B8 LA T

after charging: FHEBER:
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREBEINE

equipment 609 263
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 1,933 1,823
Auditor’s remuneration % 8K B % B 1,200 400

Staff costs (including the remuneration of 8 T Ak A (& #E Fff 5£10
the directors of the Company as disclosed — FTi¥ FEH A A A E =

in note 10): )
— Salaries and allowances and - FHekEHRNUAR
discretionary bonus ) 15 FE 41 66,987 58,099
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIRE T & R
contributions 2,281 2,020
Total staff costs BT KB 69,268 60,119

Donations 183 1,500 5
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(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 10. EX  BSTHAEREESM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS &

Directors’ emoluments and chief executive’s EEMERBESITHAE#HS
emoluments
Details of the emoluments paid to the directors of the XNFRABESZHMESFHEOT :

Company are as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2020 B F2020F3531H IF FEF

Other emoluments

A&

Retirement
Salaries and benefit
other Discretionary scheme

Fees  allowances bonus contributions Total
§eR BUREF

e Hit 28 MiERA HER &zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL ThR THER ThEn ThR

Executive directors: HITES:

Mr. Ko Bh4 - 2,280 570 18 2,868

Ms. Cheung REL - 1,380 345 18 1,743
Non-executive director: FHTES:

Mr. Ko Angus Chun Kit mEGEE

("Mr. CK Ko") (BhegxE]) 164 - - - 164

Independent Non-executive BUFHOTES:

directors:

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (Note) BEEkE () 82 - - - 82

Ms. Tse Ka Wing (Note) HEATL () 82 - - - 82

Mr. Ho Chi Shing (Note) e o A (B k) 82 = = = 82

410 3,660 915 36 5,021




Accel Group Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2020

> 104

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B 7% 3R R Bt 51

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(B = F it 3o - 1L T 3 7)

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. EE  BETHRAEREESM
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) £ @)

Directors’ emoluments and chief executive'’s EEMERRESTHAENS
emoluments (continued) (%)

Year ended 31 March 2019 B F2019F3531H IF FE

Other emoluments

At e

Retirement
Salaries and benefit
other Discretionary scheme

Fees allowances bonus contributions Total
§eR RAEH

e Hit2E HiETA HE R @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL TRT TR TEL TRT

Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Ko Bh4 - 2,160 1,260 18 3,438
Ms. Cheung KLt - 1,200 300 18 1,518
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. CK Ko (Note) = {4 o 4 (Rt ) - - - - -
= 3,360 1,560 36 4,956
Note:  Mr. CK Ko was appointed as a non-executive director of Mizk: =SE&EELEER2019F1A248EE

the Company on 24 January 2019. ERERRFERITESE °
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Ms. Tse Ka Wing and Mr. Ho
Chi Shing were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 18 September 2019.

fREZESLE  #EBL LT RAER
% 4 A201969H 18R E £ £ A K
NABIUIERITES -

The emoluments of the above executive directors were
paid for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Group whereas the emoluments of
the above non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors were paid for their services as directors of
the Company during the year. Besides, the above directors
are entitled to bonus payments which are determined with
reference to individual performance of the relevant directors.

Mr. Ko is also the chief executive officer of the Company
(the “Chief Executive”) and his emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him as the
Chief Executive.

None of the directors of the Company nor the Chief
Executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during both years.

RAFE  EARTESZOE 5K
&N EE AR B F AR MRS M
- MEASERTEZERBIIFATE
ENMEe IR REREERNARESZMIE
HRORB M o bbod LA EFEAHE
ENIEA ZSEATNK2EZRBES
MEARRETE -

BARENRARBITRAER ([THAR ]
REdABR s MERBERRKREELT
BAHE‘RRFEIHME -

RMEFEE HEARAEERITHRA
HREXAFRERELCAME
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(Expresse

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
year include 2 (2019: 2) directors of the Company, details
of whose emoluments are set out above. Details of the
emoluments of the remaining 3 (2019: 3) highest paid
individuals are as follows:

d in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

10. EE  REETHRABRESH
cAC )
EEME
AEE  AEENRAERSTMHALE
FE28 (2019F : 2R) AR Al EE - H B
S BEEH N E X % T3% (20194 : 3
BIRBTFHMALTHOHESFEBOT:

Year ended 31 March

BE3A31ALEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
HK$'000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Employees EE
— Salaries and allowances - F e RER 2,307 1,956
— Discretionary bonus (Note) ~ BB IEAT (BT 5E) 806 802
— Retirement benefit scheme - RIKRE T T 8t 5K
contributions 54 54
3,167 2,812
Note: The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to Mizr: BRBEADNE2ZEENEARE

individual performance of the employees and approved by
the management of the Group.

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid employees
were within the following band:

L %1,000,000/8
1,000,001 7c &
1,500,000 7T

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

BEYHAEEEEEE -

BRTITREFHEENHSEENT

Year ended 31 March

HBE3AMBLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
(No. of (No. of
individuals) individuals)
(A8 (A8
JT 1 3
2 -

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company, Chief Executive nor the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

AEEYBEAERMARRES K17
A B B % &= #H B A S E (7] B
SERSMATEE I MAREE &K
By BE A S -
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1.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

&5 18 B
- AEE

Hong Kong Profits Tax
— Current year

1. FIEHMAX

Year ended 31 March
B Z3A31ALLEE
2020 2019
20194
HK$’000
THET

20204
HK$’000
FHET

15,600 10,867

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of qualifying corporations will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The two-tiered profits tax rates regime was
applicable to Chit Tat for each of the two years ended 31
March 2020.

RAEE » HEFNER iR EtERR
S F #916.5% (20194F : 16.5%) 5+ & -

MR2018F3A21H + BAEM A @iB(2017
FERIEUEE)(FETHR)IE I E RN ZMF
BIEZR]) - 5| AT SR ARS o ZIE&
BHRP2018F3F2HKE R BEN - I
REAEERAE -

REMNGSHMASH BB EEE2HE
78 T B0 3% A 428.25% Bl R B A B A
A8 @25 & 7T #)i F 5 $216.5% Bt
KBTI o # £20205F3H31H IEW
BEFEERSF  NEHRRHKERRE
S o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1.
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

&A@
RAFEMASEHASATEEGEEE X
H Ath 2 E U 25 3R B9 B B AT i A1 3 BR a0
T

Year ended 31 March

BZ3A3MALEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Profit before taxation B %2 Bl @ A 88,255 56,262
Tax charge at the applicable income tax rate 3% i F AT 15 57 5t £ 16.5%
at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) (20194 : 16.5%) 5T &
K18 X 14,562 9,283
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for 7~ A] 1 %% 53 sz 89§ 75
tax purpose o2 1,353 2,090
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax 78R &1 U A B 75 75
purpose B2 (150) (341)
Income tax at concessionary rate REEMETERN
PG5 (165) (165)
Income tax expense for the year REFMBHAX 15,600 10,867
DIVIDENDS 12. BE

No interim dividends were paid, declared or proposed for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the payment
of a final dividend of HK¢3.2 per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2020, in an aggregate amount
of HK$25,600,000 has been proposed by the directors of
the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

HE2020F3A31HIEFEHBERMN T
R Bk 2 s HA R B (20194 & ) o

RFEHERE  ARAREZCEZ
L& £2020F3 8318 1EF E K~ K £
BREGREBRI2EN 8B A
25,600,000/ 7T+ I AR &) R E R
EERERAFRS EHE -
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(b %= Bt B35 - 5L E T3 7)

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. 8RER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RAATBEEARGERERAREERF
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TR AT EERTE -

following data:

Year ended 31 March
HBE3AMBLEE
2020 2019

20205 201945
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T

Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic F A &t B & B & A &
and diluted earnings per share BERNE R
(profit for the year) (RFEEmF) 72,655 45,395

No. of shares No. of shares
‘000 ‘000

It BB R BB
F & FB

Weighted average number of ordinary ARFAEERERR
shares for the purpose of calculating basic — #58 & F| 89 & 18 %
and diluted earnings per share IEFHEE 690,710 600,000

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to
calculate the basic earnings per share amounts for both
years have been determined on the assumption that the
Reorganisation and the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in
note 23) have been effective on 1 April 2018.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the effect of
the over-allotment option in relation to the Share Offer
(as defined in note 23) on diluted earnings per share is
insignificant.

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the year
ended 31 March 2019 as there was no potential ordinary
share in issue.

PREFEARTESREARTNESE
WEBRINETFOHECRREZARE
AN{E 21T (E & R M 7523) B 1201845 4
R1IBERMETE °

REVE2020F3A31HIEFE - BERN
HE(EERWME)NEREREY S
BEERNOE BIMTEM -

AR T FEEBEERITERR - SN EH
Z2019F3A31AEFETE 25 F K
BB AT o
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(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ BERRXE

Furniture,
A carpark Leasehold fixtures and Motor
space  improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE G- £EB
BEN VESL S k&t HE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TERL TEL TEL TEn
CosT KA
At 1 April 2018 120184818 - 320 1,297 - 1,617
Additions RE 2,300 - 401 - 2,701
At 31 March 2019 12019%3 4318 2,300 320 1,698 = 4318
Additions NE = 196 473 749 1418
Transfer from EfRESE
right-of-use assets LR = = = 264 264
Disposals HE = - - (264) (264)
Write-off i - (320) - - (320)
At 31 March 2020 12020F3A318 2,300 196 2,17 749 5,416
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 April 2018 R201854 718 = 160 741 - 901
Provided for the year TEERE 46 64 153 - 263
At 31 March 2019 12019434318 46 224 894 - 1,164
Provided for the year REERE 73 118 306 12 609
Transfer from BfRELE
right-of-use assets LR = = = 232 232
Eliminated upon disposals (i &5 ¥ 45 - - - (232) (232)
Eliminated upon write-off ~ #fl $8 B5 ¥ & - (278) - - (278)
At 31 March 2020 12020%3 7318 119 64 1,200 112 1,495
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2020 12020534318 2,181 132 971 637 3,921
At 31 March 2019 1201934318 2,254 96 804 - 3,154
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A I - pa G, #e N SEE S Bl =
(fr =B it BH Y 7] IX )8 7~

 JL 5

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRZHE@®

(continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to write off their cost over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

A carpark space 3%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease term

Furniture, fixtures and 20%-30%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

The Group’s carpark space is situated in Hong Kong and
was acquired with an unexpired rental lease agreement
attached thereto. The rental lease agreement expired in
January 2019 and the carpark was then used by the Group.

The Group's carpark space is pledged to secure its banking
facilities (Note 21).

M BMERZEBIEFERBELF L
B £ AT A T AT PR A HA M 8E & K
7N

FHEM 3%
HEYHEE AEHA
R HEBREZE 20%-30%

RE 20%
REBWMISEMETS » WIABEK KE

mHERZEE - HEHZEDR2019
FIAEm  FESNBAEEER -

ANEE R EE AL E R TR S (R4 (M
$X21) o
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The tenure of the Group’s lease arrangements for renting
carpark space, office premises, warehouses and motor
vehicles is mainly from two to five years.

The lease arrangements for renting carpark space, office
premises and warehouses usually allow early termination
for the Group's giving one-month prior notice after twelve
months from the commencement of the leases, otherwise,
penalties, equivalent to one-month lease payment, is
necessary.

In respect of the lease arrangements for renting motor
vehicles, the Group has options to purchase the motor
vehicles for nominal amounts at the end of the leases and
there is no early termination options.

The Group’s right-of-use assets in respect of lease
arrangements for renting carpark space, office premises,
warehouses and motor vehicles at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

15.

2N =]

(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

EHEEE

AEEHEABSEMG  BAEYNE AR
RAEHHER S FHEIEAMER
f‘f o

HAEEMN BRAEVERRENEE
REHRFRMASENEERS + =@
AT BABANRAMKRLIEE &
AFBMNBEEFRN— @A HE MK E

=+
e

SRERAIENHEHERENE  AKEA
ERNERERRZARSBEBEAE
HEEERAIARLAE -

AEBERBERRUERFEEL - BQ
BYME RERAENHEZHNEH
EREEEMT:

Carpark Office Motor
space premises Warehouses vehicles Total
FEE BAZYE RE RE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THER TR TAT THER
cosT KA
At 1 April 2018 20184 A1H 93 1,891 1,165 2,688 5,837
Additions RE 93 - 608 1,486 2,187
Expiration/early termination of ~ HEANER,/
lease contracts AL (93) = (1,165) = (1,258)
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31H 93 1,891 608 4174 6,766
Additions NE - 1,293 657 320 2,270
Expiration of lease contracts HEAHER - (1,891) (291) (879) (3,061)
Transfer to property, plant and ~ EEZEHE  BEL
equipment B = = = (264) (264)
At 31 March 2020 12020434318 93 1,293 974 3,351 5,711
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 15. FAEEE®

Carpark Office Motor
space premises Warehouses vehicles Total

FEE  BRAENE RE nE ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TRR TR TR

DEPRECIATION il
At 1 April 2018 20184 A1H 8 709 629 2,162 3,508
Charge for the year AEFENK 39 946 557 281 1,823
Expiration/early termination of ~ HEANER,/
lease contracts RAIR L 47) = (1,001) = (1,048)
At 31 March 2019 12019434318 = 1,655 185 2,443 4,283
Charge for the year AEEMK 46 721 437 729 1,933
Elimination upon expiration of T &4 4173 i b5 ¥ 84
lease contracts = (1,891) (291) (879) (3,061)
Transfer to property, plant and ~ EEZNE  BEL
equipment BY] = - - (232) (232)
At 31 March 2020 M2020F3H318 46 485 331 2,061 2,923
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2020 R202043A431H 47 808 643 1,290 2,788
At 31 March 2019 H2019%3A318 %3 236 423 1,731 2,483
The above items of right-of-use assets are depreciated on P RAEEEBREREMETRAIEASF
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives or the g HHAARESEETEDT
lease terms as follows:
Carpark space 2 years =85 2%
Office premises 2 years WAEYE 25
Warehouses 2 years BE 25
Motor vehicles 5 years -2 54
During the year, the Group had total cash outflows for RAFEE AEEBHENLE @R
leases amounting to HK$1,656,000 (2019: HK$1,926,000). H &1,656,0007% 7T (20194F : 1,926,000
B IT) °
In addition, the Group’s lease liabilities of HK$2,788,000 It 4N R &£ B & & 52,788,0005
(2019: HK$2,066,000) are recognised with related right-of- 7t (20194F : 2,066,000 JT) & [F 42
use assets of HK$2,788,000 (2019: HK$2,483,000) as at £ F # & 72,788,000/ 7T (20194 :
31 March 2020. The lease agreements do not impose any 2,483,000/% 7T ) ¥ 7A20204F3 A31 B 1
covenants other than the security interests in the leased ReBREBAMBFEEEENERER

assets that are held by the lessors. SN HEME TSI IR 2L -



16. PAYMENTS FOR LIFE INSURANCE

In November 2017, the Group paid premium for a life
insurance policy (the “Insurance Policy”) to insure Ms.
Cheung, the director of the Company. Under the Insurance
Policy, the beneficiary and policy holder is the Group.
At inception of the Insurance Policy, the Group paid a
gross premium of HK$6,500,000 by two instalments of
HK$3,250,000 each. The Group can terminate the Insurance
Policy at any time and can receive cash at the date of
termination based on the account value of the Insurance
Policy (the “Account Value”), which is determined as the
gross premium paid with the accrued returns (as further
details set out below) after netting of the charges (including
a surrender charge if the termination of the Insurance Policy
is within the first policy year), if any, in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Insurance Policy.

The Group shall receive returns (with guaranteed minimum
return at rates of 3.75%, 3% and 2% per annum for the
first policy year, second policy year and third to tenth
policy years, respectively) during the effective period of
the Insurance Policy. The directors of the Company have
no intention to terminate the Insurance Policy within 12
months after the end of each of the reporting periods and,
therefore, the amount is classified as non-current assets as
at 31 March 2019 and 2020.

The payments for life insurance is carried at amortised cost
as at 31 March 2019 and 2020.

Details of impairment assessment of payments for life
insurance are set out in note 31.

16.

BEEELEARAT 200FF® 113 4

XfHERS

2017 1A - AN & B 5t 5 B R =B (R
B)YXNRE  UWAARREZESZTRLZL
ER -BERE ZZARRERFE
ABAEE - RRERBE  A&H
2 W HA & 8#83,250,0008 T X T AR &
6,500,000/ 7T ° 72 & B 7] P& B 4% 1E 1R
B WA RKRIEBHBREBERENEKSE
E(RFEEDKNRE  ZEFEAE
TR B REMNGRREHEE &R
ERREBEIREEREFERIER
BHREBEH)(NE)HEE B R LR
STAMBREGEBRHNTX) -

N5 B 15 PR 587G A HA A9 U ER B =R (AR
BEREFE F_EREFERE=
ZE+AREFENRERIEKEFREF
R B A3.75% ~ 3% K2%) ° KARE

B A I Z & 58 R20194F K 20203 A
BEDEAFERBDEE -

M2019F K 2020E3A31H » INEH S
2 8 R AN B BR o

o 5 B < O 6L MEL 5 f 3F 15 B0 B A
31 e
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 17. ESREMEWRRE &R
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS B RIE

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2020 2019
20205 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET THET
Trade receivables =& e 41,730 29,418
Refundable rental deposits (Note) AR E & % e (K ) 359 219
Other receivables H h fE U K IE 358 4
Prepayments for purchase of materials and & & 1 £ #9 78 1+ 20 38 &
subcontracting fees DB 22,046 731
Prepaid expenses ERNAXZ 3,415 1,262
Prepaid listing expenses and issue costs AN ETmHRAZ RET
DN = 203
Deferred issue costs IR JE B TR - 3,340
Utilities and other deposits PAEERAMZS 163 34
68,071 35,211
Note: Included in the refundable rental deposits as at 31 March MizE: M201943A31H ' AIREHEE &
2019 were amounts of HK$106,000 (2020: Nil) and BESBIN TR ZEREGBR AR
HK$57,000 (2020: Nil) paid to Shing Chak Development FABEERER AT (D RHEARA A
Limited and Milan Development Limited which are wholly- EERtERRRTE2EHA)N
owned by Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung, the directors of 106,0007% 7t (20204 : &) % 57,000
the Company, respectively. The other refundable rental 7 7T (20204 : &) © 720194 2020
deposits as at 31 March 2019 and 2020 were paid to FIANHMEMAEEASE S X
independent landlords. NFTBLEE -
Trade receivables represent amounts receivable for work BEREWHIEESNBIRESEEKRDS

certified after deduction of retention money. B TIEHIE -



SR EEZERERAR 2020 FK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 454 B 75 3R 3R B 51

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits for customers. Recoverability of the amounts due
from existing customers is reviewed by the directors of the
Company regularly.

The Group allows generally a credit period of 7 to 90 days
to its customers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables of
the Group presented based on dates of work certified by
architects, surveyors or other representatives appointed by
the customers, that approximate to the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period.

(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

17. ESREMEBWFIE EERK

& S FRIE ()

RENTAFEFR  NEBE 2T (GHE
ERFNEEEZTRAIZEFNEER
B BUWRAERF B IENE S H
AR EET PR -

AEB—RETEREFIZEOANEE
gq o

TXBEPHZENRZEN « BISAIX
HREARBESHRZCEETREAN
(EBZHHAR)2INAEEEHE
YRR B B e 0 AT

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2020 2019
20205 20195
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T THERT
0 to 30 days 0230k 35,935 21,672
31 to 90 days 31290k 2,774 7,746
91 to 180 days 91£180K 1,469 -
Above 180 days 180K A k£ 1,552 =
41,730 29,418

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group's trade
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate gross
carrying amount of HK$3,021,000 (2019: Nil) which are
past due 90 days or more as at the reporting date and is
not considered as in default because these customers are
in the process of internal settlement procedures that the
management of the Group has acknowledged and approved
the extended credit period.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables and refundable rental deposits are set out in
note 31.

MR2020F3A31H A5 EE 5 E WK
TH 4 & B 15 4 R M < %83,021,0007% 7T
(2019%F : B) 2 R FRTH » ZZEFHIER
REBHEEHA0K KA EEBTWR A
EBY REREEEPEREETAILE
HERF AEETEECERLIEL
REEH -

B 5 K H Al R W RIAIA RATR B £ 4%
& B R E R IEE N M S -
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(B 5 B850 U4 % 7T 51 R)

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 18. EHNEEREE

Contract assets as at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and 31
March 2020 amounting to HK$84,586,000, HK$70,923,000
and HK$115,150,000, respectively, represent the Group's
rights to considerations from customers for the provision of
E&M engineering services, which arise when: (i) the Group
completed the relevant services under such contracts but
yet certified by architects, surveyors or other representatives
appointed by the customers; and (ii) the customers withhold
certain certified amounts payable to the Group as retention
money (i.e. retention receivables) to secure the due
performance of the contracts.

The retention receivables included in contract assets are to
be settled at the end of the reporting period as follows:

H2018F481H ~ 201943 A31H }2020
FIA3NEME L E E D B £84,586,000
7 JT ~ 70,923,000/ 7T &115,150,0007%
TC o BASERIREKE T2 RS MM
EPWBMNRENES  ZERMRUAT
ERELE: ) ANEEREBEZZESHTK
EFHEBERBEENREREFMEZENE
ZAD - REMa EMmRRRBERN Ki)
EFREBAEEENMNSE TixERIAE
AREEBEKRES) UERZA
BITEH -

BHNEEANERRE SR BSHR
*”*ZIDT

As at 31 March

M3A31A8
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$°000
FEx FET
Within one year —F R 26,833 9,268
After one year —&1& 28,858 28,488
55,691 37,756

Included in the carrying amounts of contract assets of the
Group were contract assets (including retention receivables)
aggregating to HK$9,109,000 as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$3,081,000) which are related to the same contract of
contract liabilities and are accounted for and presented on a
net basis on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes of contract assets during the year were mainly
due to: (1) changes in retention receivables as a result
of an increase in number of ongoing and completed
contracts under the defects liability period during the year;
and (2) changes in the size of contract works that the
relevant services were completed but yet been certified by
architects, surveyors or other representatives appointed by
the customers at the end of the reporting period.

M2020F3A31H » AEBNENEER
EEETE@% HNEE(REEKRES)
& #£9,109,0007 7t (20194F : 3,081,000
BIL)ERRA—-—E6HNEEEHNLREGEE
HHERRERP IR FEEARRZ -

RAFENANEEZS HNERHN:
METHFERREMANE KA OHK
ERAFEENERELRESZE :
K (2) 1B BR 75 B 72 BB 1 3R & B R i R
REPHZERREN RS EM
REZBONEHNIREZREES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR EETERAR QA

20205 F 3R

AR5 B 3% SRR B X

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(continued)

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are set
out in note 31.

Contract liabilities as at 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019
and 31 March 2020 amounting to HK$32,138,000,
HK$3,773,000 and HK$11,327,000 represent the Group’s
obligation to transfer of E&M engineering services to
customers for which the Group has received advance
payments from the customers.

Contract liabilities as at 1 April 2018 and 2019 have been
recognised as revenue for the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2020 respectively.

Changes of contract liabilities during the year were mainly
due to recognition of contract liabilities as revenue during
the year.

PLEDGED BANK BALANCES, BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

The Group’s pledged bank balances as at 31 March 2020
were fixed deposits with a bank that carried interest at fixed
rates ranging from 0.97% to 1.05% per annum and were
secured for the grant of performance bonds to the Group
by a bank. Included in pledged bank balances amounting to
HK$49,677,000 (2019: Nil), which is related to performance
bonds to be expired after 31 March 2021 and is, therefore,
classified as non-current as at 31 March 2020. Further
details are set out in note 25.

Included in the Group’s bank balances and cash as at 31
March 2020 were fixed deposits with banks aggregating to
HK$80,002,000 which carried interest at fixed rates ranging
from 0.37% to 0.80% per annum (2019: Nil). The other
bank balances carried interest at prevailing market interest
rate at 0.001% (2019: 0.001%) as at 31 March 2019 and
2020.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank balances
and bank balances are set out in note 31.

18.

19.

EHREEREEAW@®

BREEMRER M BEHENME3 -

R2018F4 818 ~ 201943 A31H }2020
FIA3MBENE X AE D R 432,138,000
7 JT ~ 3,773,000% T }&11,327,0007%
T IBASEBKRE T RRGEEETA
SEERREFPURBBENRENEFZE
£ -

MR2018F N2019F4A1HHN AN BED
DRIRE E 20194 & 2020F3A31H IEF
ERRAWE -

RAFENANABREHIEEHNA
FERAGNWARER /KRS -

TR ITHER  BVITERR
He

R2020F3A31H * AEBHEEMIET
HERABRITEEER  BEEFFNEN
TF0.97% £1.05% =1 £ I B 5 IR 17 M A&
EERENBHRESERME - KA
SR 1T 45 840 49,677,000 7T (20194F : &)
B A2021F3 A31HZ B mM B A IRE
A - B R2020F3 8318 B A
TE) o i — TR BE R K EE2S -

R20209F3A318 * AEBRITEB KT
% B4 £ 580,002,000/ 7T 89 4R 17 &
TE 17 30 (20194F « %) - H iz [E & F 7 =
0.37% £0.80% &t B ° 720194 & 2020
F3A31H - EMRTABRIRIBITMEF
2%0.001% (20194 : 0.001%) 5T 8. °

EEMBITHERRRITEBRHRERT B
AHBEENMRES -
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(b %= Bt B35 - 5L E T3 7)

20. TRADE, RETENTION AND OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

20. &
H

SENTE BENREER
thENREUARESER

As at 31 March

M3A318

2020 2019

20205 20195

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FTET

Trade payables E 5 FE T 38 26,485 17,646

Retention payables ERRES 14,646 5,821
Accrued issue costs and FESt BT AR £

listing expenses 3 = 1,750

Accruals BT E A 7,768 8,909

48,899 34,126

Included in the Group’s trade and retention payables as
at 31 March 2020 are amounts due to related parties
amounting to HK$3,121,000 (2019: HK$2,387,000), in
aggregate, which are trade nature, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable according to the relevant agreements.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables of the
Group based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

R2020F3A31H A5 B E 5 E MK
BREMRESEEEMSBEE S RE
4 33,121,000/ 7T (20194 : 2,387,000/%
L) ZEREAESME BER &
BREREHAHBEEE

o

UTARBERREAEEE S RN RIA
BBEZAHORE DT

As at 31 March

A3H831H
2020 2019
20204 20195
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
0 to 30 days 0&E30K 21,334 17,629
31 to 90 days 31290k 5,151 17
26,485 17,646

The credit period of trade payables granted by the Group's
suppliers are usually within 60 days.

MASEBEEEERENESEMNRERE
BB T N60KNA °
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20. TRADE, RETENTION AND OTHER 20. EZEMNNE  BENREESR

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) HttENRAUKREFER
(&)

The Group usually retains 5% to 10% of each interim AEEREORASBIEHEEN S B
payment to its subcontractors providing services to the EREBEETBRNKRES% E10%ERE
Group as retention payables. According to the relevant TRE® - REEZES BEANEBRE
contracts with these subcontractors, 50% of the retention 4 S0%MEMNRESBEREEEMN
payables is usually released upon handing over of the EHERAKEIZEURINTEHREA
residential units to respective owners by the developers for R EMIAR G KRR ZEE - mek
residential units projects and completion of services under T50% K FE 1 1R & & #8708 R AT FE
contracts for other projects, with the remaining 50% of REEENEAEERE - RIWEHRAN
the retention payables to be released after six months of SEENRENEENDT :

the first payment of the retention payables. The retention
payables of the Group are to be settled at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2020 2019

20205 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THERT

Within six months 7~ ME A A 250 975
Within a period of more than six months  7~fE B LA E{BRE B

but not exceeding one year —F 8RN 7,092 1,123

Within a period of more than one year —F L8R 7,304 3,723

14,646 5,821
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21. BANK LOAN

Bank loan, secured

RITER - AHEA

As at 31 March
MA3HA318
2020

20204
HK$’000
FHET

483

2019
20195
HK$'000
FE& T

1,459

According to the relevant bank facilities letters, the bank
borrowings of the Group are payable as follows:

RIFEBRTEE KT  AREOIRTT

fERENIT

As at 31 March

M3A31H

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$000 HK$'000

FET TET

Within one year —&R 136 976
Within a period of more than one year —F L EBPHEEMRE

but not exceeding two years HA 140 136
Within a period of more than two years  FIF A E{ETEBB AT

but not exceeding five years A 207 347

Within a period of more than five years FE EHA = -

483 1,459

The Group's bank loan as at 31 March 2019 and 2020 was
lent by a bank under its bank facilities granted to the Group.
The bank facilities were secured by personal guarantees
given by Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung in favour of the bank and
their certain properties and the Group’s carpark space and
Insurance Policy.

REER20195 K 202053 A31HEERTT
ERTABITREER TAKEMIRTT
BMEMEGH - RITREASEEREKR L
RETRZ S ARENEAZERREKEE
METHERUARAEENEECRKRE

EHEA -
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21. BANK LOAN (continued)

Notwithstanding the provisions stated in the aforesaid bank
facilities, the bank may at any time without prior notice,
modify, cancel or suspend the banking facilities, at the
sole discretion of such bank; including, without limitation,
cancelling any unutilised facilities and declaring any
outstanding amount to be immediately due and payable.
Accordingly, the above bank loan was classified as current
liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and 2020.

The bank loan as at 31 March 2020 bore variable interest
rate at 2% per annum below Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted
by the relevant bank (2019: 2% per annum below Hong
Kong Prime Rate quoted by the relevant bank).

(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

21. RITER@
BELARITHMETBARE + RITARE
ERRAEMBASZEBANTRERER]
BUHSKEERTME - BFE AR R
HEMNASAMEREHRTIAAEES
FEANEF BB N B o it - 7R2019F &
20209F3A31H ' LaiiRITER S EAR
AR -

R20209F3A318 © IRITEKIZEBERT
Fr 3 B 75 & 18 B ) 5 2% 8 )% B) F A
E(Q019F - IR HBEIRITAIHRE S HE
BB 2% FF )t A -

22. LEASE LIABILITIES 22. HEAE
As at 31 March
MA3H31H
2020
20204
HK$000
TERT
Non-current JFER B 1,205 1,108
Current & 1,583 958
2,788 2,066
- - A
Maturity analysis 2B 2 AT
As at 31 March
®3A318
2020
20204
HK$°000
TERT
Within one year —F R 1,583 958
Within a period of more than one year —F P LB IBMRE
but not exceeding two years HA 802 491
Within a period of more than two years MENEBETERAF
but not exceeding five years A 403 617

2,788 2,066
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(Br = F it B % 17 LA B Sl

22. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

23.

The Group does not expose to a significant liquidity risk
with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are
monitored within the Group’s treasury function.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Group

The share capital as at 1 April 2018 represented the share
capital of Chit Tat.

On 27 September 2018, as part of the Reorganisation,
Ascend Group Holdings Limited (“Ascend”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired 3,500,000
and 1,500,000 ordinary shares, representing the entire
share capital of Chit Tat, from Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung,
respectively, in consideration of allotting and issuing 70 and
30 ordinary shares in Ascend credited as fully paid, to Mr.
Ko and Ms. Cheung, respectively.

The share capital as at 31 March 2019 and 2020
represented the share capital of the Company.

22. HEEBEmW

23.

AEEYEEREHEAGBHEBNHNEX
RBELRAR - HERBERAEEHHT

% 2
KEE
20184 A 1B MR AN 5 B 2 MU AR 7S -

M201849H27H * {E A & # 2 —
o KRAARZE &K B A A Ascend

Group Holdings Limited ([Ascend]) % 7l
WM = %5 4 Kok 22 £ W& 3,500,000 8% &
1,500,000% & i ik (18 & A #2222 #0 AR
) REASNASEERKRLZ TR
2 K 2 17700% 12 30% Ascend A BR 71 {E 4%
EREER -

M20194F 2202043 A31H AR AR FE A A
A RN o
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23. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 23. IR m)
The Company AT
Number of
shares HK$'000
R &8 FET
Authorised ordinary SREEIIEBTHEES
shares with par value BR:
of HK$0.01 each:
At 20 September 2018 7201849 H20H
(date of incorporation) (M AH) &
and 31 March 2019 201943 H31H (i) 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised BB INEERAR
share capital under the
Reorganisation (ii) 9,962,000,000 99,620
At 31 March 2020 72020434318 10,000,000,000 100,000

Ordinary shares, issued CORTRAZEER:

and fully paid:
At 20 September 2018 7201849 H20H

(date of incorporation) (FEf Ak iz A HR) (i) 100 —x
Issue of ordinary shares BT LB (iii) 100 =
At 31 March 2019 20193 A31H 200 —*

Issue of ordinary shares of 1RIEMR K B EZETARA A
the Company pursuant to 3@ &

the Share Offer (iv) 200,000,000 2,000
Capitalisation Issue N (v) 599,999,800 6,000
800,000,000 8,000
*  Amounts less than HK$1,000. * DR,0008 TR o
Notes: B
(i) On 20 September 2018, the Company was incorporated (i) MR20184F9H208 ' A A RFEMAL S A
with limited liability with an initial authorised share BRAR - E¥ZEERA 5380,000
capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 ordinary 7 70 9 £38,000,0008% & % m &
shares with par value of HK$0.01 each. On the date of 0.01B TR EMAR - NEEMKZBE -
incorporation, one share was allotted and issued, at par and B EERZERET—RARSEH
credited as fully paid. RHIRG °
On the same date, the Company further allotted and issued BH - ARFIREEE—F 0 RE

99 ordinary shares at par, all credited as fully paid. TOOREER - 2HARINASHE -
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23. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The

Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Com pPany (continued)
(continued)

On 18 September 2019, pursuant to the written resolution
of the sole shareholder of the Company, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.01 each to HK$100,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each by the creation of an additional
9,962,000,000 new ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.01
each.

On 29 November 2018, Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung (as
vendors) and the Company (as purchaser) entered into a
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Ko
and Ms. Cheung agreed to transfer 140 and 60 ordinary
shares of Ascend to the Company, in consideration of the
Company allotting and issuing 70 and 30 ordinary shares of
the Company, all credited as fully paid, to Mr. Ko and Ms.
Cheung, respectively.

On 18 October 2019, 200,000,000 ordinary shares with
par value of HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued
at a price of HK$0.73 per share by way of public offer
and placing of the Company’s ordinary shares (the “Share
Offer”).

On 18 October 2019, the Company effected the
capitalisation of an amount of HK$5,999,998 standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company as
a result of the Share Offer and to appropriate such amount
as to capital to pay up in full, at par, 599,999,800 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each for allotment and
issue to the shareholders of the Company on 18 October
2019, each ranking pari passu in all respects with the
then existing issued ordinary shares of the Company (the
"Capitalisation Issue”).

RS B 3% SRR B BE

23. B )
ViN/NETRE )
ME ()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R2019F9818H + B IE AR Al M — %
RHEMRBER NGB BEIMNEER
9,962,000,000/% & % T f50.017%8 T &
@R - BEEEIRAH380,00078
7t (5 438,000,000 A% AN 2 7 & M Fl B
0.0 LAY BA%) #HNZ=100,000,000
7 7T (9 /$10,000,000,000 8% & A 7] &
AX T {E0.0178 ST LR AR) -

R2018F11A298 ' &S k£ KR &Z £
(ERERBARRWERE H)FIL
BEEWmE Bt 8 LtERKRLZITH
29 Bl 8 E1400% R 60% Ascend & B
BRFARG  EAXRRDRRASE
A NOOR 2 TR 3 R B 1T70/% K30 AR
NAARINEHAR L BRMONRE -

720194107188 - 200,000,0008% 7
NEEREE.IEBITHEBEREZEER
0738 THEMRET TARARE
EREEARFEAR((REBE]

M2019510818H * AARBAAR R
BhEEMRBDEEBRTHESEE
755,999,998 ST AR REE T E AN
WHZERBRETEANIZEBS R
599,999,800 /% AN A &) & & H {H0.01/%
JC R 5B AR A% R DA 72019410318
HmE AR R & RA S RET BEK
MEARRERNEFERT LT AR
EFEFEHEZERSHA((ERE
BT
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 18 September
2019, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme
is valid and effective for a period commencing from 18
September 2019 and ending on the tenth anniversary of the
date of listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on 18 October 2019. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide an incentive or reward for the
grantees for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may, at its discretion, grant options to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company to any full-
time or part-time employees, consultants or potential
employees, consultants, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any
suppliers, customers, consultants, agents, advisers who, in
the sole opinion of the board of directors of the Company,
has contributed or will contribute to the Group (collectively,
the “Eligible Participants”) and whom the board of
directors of the Company may in its absolute discretion
select and subject to such conditions as it may think fit.

4. BRETE

1B 1E R2019F9818H BB W ZE R 5
R ADRRM—IBRERERE (5 R
TR ) - BARERTEIE52019F9A18H
a2 A A R K AR - I E Z=20194F
108188 AR R R MR B X Fr £+ R
FiFEm - BRETEZENESEK
MEABAGRNEBAEZERBERE
HEf o

BREBERETE ARAEFSTRB
[ 8 2 &) 3 B AT fA] B I8 8 A O AT f) 22 B
HFRBER  HAALEERER  #H
A TBRABESSABE(BERTE
F FATESFEMRBUIFATES) R
ARFEEEERARELABAEE
BEL BRI AEER TP - &5
A RERER(REIEGEKRSEE])
URARBEZE2RPBRERNTA
BRGHEZALIRTARBARRER
Bz BB HE
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes adopted by the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the ordinary share capital
of the Company in issue from time to time. The total
number of ordinary shares of the Company which may
be allotted and issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the ordinary shares in issue as at the date
of passing of the relevant resolution adopting the Share
Option Scheme. Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at any
time and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days after the date of the offer, upon the
Company received the duplicate offer document comprising
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee
together with the consideration of HK$1.00. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determined by the
directors of the Company, save that such period shall not
be more than ten years from the date of the offer of the
share options, subject to the provisions for early termination
as set out in the Share Option Scheme.

Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors
of the Company at its absolute discretion, there is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must
be held before an option can be exercised. In addition, there
is no performance target which must be achieved before
any of the options can be exercised.

24.

BRESTE w

AR IR BB R A AT B R A S E R A R ]
HhBREFESERLEFTENRE
MARITE B AR TR R AL BT AV AR
NERSHE  AETHBBBARETE
BT E B ANRZ30% o AR I S A
STEIRASEE M E MR ER ST
REMATEBREREITEER TRER
BITNARRERRAE  aXTER
BIRANBREENERAERBRE
HEZETEBRAI0% - KFAQNAE
E -HERTHRABRETERRE  iFEE
ERBBEBAZERE BELEESEAA
BB IEMITESHE o poN - EEM
ToEABEEFARREER RKLB
VIEHITEE  KFEEEMBEAZT
RIERE  EFEABESBEAAGEE
BITEREBRMN01%  REMAEAEH
ERBMRIBERERA R ZARRE
BRWMERE)EE5,000,000% T -
HAEERBERSLERRBB -

BHBEREZZHANELHAEZI4R
A REARBREBEBOXMHRIA(ETE
AR AER % F 2 0B R 8 )
ERB T ZHREREM - FAIRHLE
BEzZTERARBAARNE=TEE
FRAMBEEREZENRRNES T SE
BTF - WRBBHER 8RR R L F
HIRERMRR -

BRIFHARRESE2RNEETE &
A\ AR E BB R TITEAARS AR
AN &R - tbsh - TREEAIRE K
BAITITENAZERNERERR -



24. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

25.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by
the board of directors of the Company, but in any event
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
ordinary shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the offer
of the share options, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the ordinary shares of the company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
ordinary shares.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme since its effective date on
18 September 2019 and there was no outstanding share
option as at 31 March 2020.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEES

As at 31 March 2020, performance bonds of
HK$49,972,000 (2019: HK$32,483,000), were given by a
bank in favour of the Group’s customers as security for the
due performance and observance of the Group’s obligations
under the contracts entered into between the Group and
its customers. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory
performance to its customers to whom performance
guarantees have been given, such customers may demand
the bank to pay to them the sum or sum stipulated in
such demand. The Group will become liable to compensate
such bank accordingly. The performance guarantees will be
released upon completion of the E&M engineering services.
The performance bonds as at 31 March 2020 were issued
under the bank facilities granted by a bank to the Group
and such bank facilities are secured by the Group’s pledged
bank balances (note 19) and corporate guarantee given
by the Company in favour of the bank (2019: secured by
certain properties of Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung).

24,

25.

BEEELEARAT 00FF® 127 4

B R &
BREZTEERARARAESSE T -
EEBINAIAZLEBUTZERE ()R
BREZOBEB(EREXRABIME
HREXRAMRZAAREAERIKITE
(WBEZHEHIAELEBBINE
BREXRA A Z AR E BB FH WS
B RNARAI TR ZEE °

B4 B 20199 18 B #E - BERR AT
EIE TIW EEMBEREER L - 176 -
STHHE R R - B20204E3 318 I 14
RAT A BE AR A o

& % 1R B4

202053 H31H » 49,972,0007% 7T (2019
£ 132,483,000 7T) B ARTE & HIRTT
UAEBEFP A= AEL  (ERA S
BXERTAETASEEHARE M
AIVHAHNBETEINER - WAEE
REMRMELRBORINEFRZRES AR
ENXRE  ZERFPAEXRBITRAFSE
SNERCHENBEERBTHSE -
AEEBSFRESZSRITELERER
ENEE - BOARKBHREE TERS
TR RR o B AVEHM20209F3H31H
BIEBERTRAANERRHARITEE T NI
BT MEBEBRITRERANEEZEFH
SR1T4E 2 (M0 E19) R AR &) M) 4R 17 he 4
HARREBEERQOIVE : R kE R
RZTHE TYWHEEER) -
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MEITBFELEEENHEER

TRAMAEERETHMELERED
e BRACRIIRNECEY - AR
BRELREAREABRARELGAR
EREXRNDBELABREZDME (AR
ERENREREIARAKRASRE -

26. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 26.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from (used in) financing activities.

Amount
due to a
shareholder
Interest Lease Bank Accrued of the
payable liabilities loans issue costs Company Total
&t ;AN
EAFE HESE BITEXR BOREX —-ZRRAE @t
HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
THERT TER TERT TERT TER THERT
At 31 March 2018 #20184%3A31H - 2,149 9,779 - 9,876 21,804
Cash changes: He g
Interest paid BAF B (562) (66) - - - (628)
New bank loan raised HESRTER = = 10,690 = - 10,690
Repayments of bank loans BERTER = = (19,010) - - (19,010)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEREER - (1,860) - - - (1,860)
Issue costs paid B BT A - - - (3,034) = (3,034)
Non-cash changes: HEL BT
Finance costs recognised B R E KA 562 66 = = = 628
Issue costs accrued FE AT B TR AR = = = 3,340 - 3,340
Non-cash transaction (Note 27(b) ~ FEBR £ R 5 (I £27(b) - - - - (9,876) (9,876)
Additions of lease contracts BRAEESN
(Note 27(a)) (H3 727(2)) = 1,987 = = = 1,987
Early termination of lease contracts 12 RIRILTHEAH - (210) - - - (210)
At 31 March 2019 #2019438318 - 2,066 1,459 306 - 3830
Cash changes: R #E:
Interest paid BAFE (24) (108) = - = (132)
Repayments of bank loan BERITER = - (976) - - (976)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEREER - (1,548) - - - (1,548)
Issue costs paid B BT A = = = (16,626) - (16,626)
Non-cash changes: HEL BT
Finance costs recognised B RS K AR 24 108 = = - 132
Issue costs accrued AT B TR AR - - - 16,320 - 16,320
Additions of lease contracts BRAEERN
(Note 27(a)) (H3 #27(2)) = 2,270 = = - 2,270

At 31 March 2020

720203 A31H

2,788

483

3,271
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the Track Record Period, the Group had the
following major non-cash transactions:

(@)  During the years ended 31 March 2020, the Group
entered into rental agreements that increases
its right-of-use assets and lease liabilities by
HK$2,270,000 (2019: HK$1,987,000).

(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2019, Mr. Ko agreed
to waive the Group’s amount due to him amounting
to HK$9,876,000 (2020: Nil) which was accounted for
as deemed contribution in the Group’s equity.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined the MPF Scheme which is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and the employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, there will not be any
forfeited contribution available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group.

The Group's retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss as set out
in note 9 represent contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at the rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

27.

28.

TEFRAEXRS
REEDHIR  AEEEETTIE
EHRAERS

(@) EZE2020F3A31HILFE K&
BRI E o EINEEAEE
EREERE2,270,000/% T (2019
£ : 1,987,000 7T) °

(b) EZE201943A31HILFEE 5%
ERIENERNSEETE 2 RIE
9,876,000/ 7T (20204 : #) + Jj
RSB REABIREER -

iR k18 R 5T &

AEE D AR E B 1E QT8 2 5 8 %
PlERFIMEAEEEERECHBRES
FtEl - BEEHENEEBINAEE
MEE DXBUXFEAEFNESE
B e REBEBESFTENRA - BERE
A% AR MAGT BAY L KA T 83
K- AKREEHRBESFTENERRT
RIRBFEELMBEHER - RIBRES
sHEl - A e BIE A E R WA B
HRAEBRREMER -

AP EEOPT L - AR EE R IE S E B M
HEVR KR M ET B R BB EP IR -
HERASEZ 88 AFT R AL R ([
HEERMAMHR-
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Other than the transactions and balances with related
parties disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

29. BBEAR 5
(@) BEAMBBRREMBHIBBED R
BB RS R ARSI AEER
AEERBY T T ENTRS

Year ended 31 March

BE3A3MALEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT
(i) Subcontracting charges paid to Shun (i) MAZELRITEAF
Tat Air Conditioning Engineering (—E X &5k Er R
Company, a company controlled by AR TIEH B AR])
a grandson of the uncle of Mr. Ko T B8 8,943 6,156
(i) Subcontracting charges and (i) MEBEAEEEMHTIRER
information technology RI(—EXEEEZ
maintenance service fees paid to M, SBIEHIE A R])
Yuk Shing Advertising & Decoration Xfto g Rk EME
Engineering Co., a company REEREE
controlled by a brother of Mr. Ko 811 1,374
(iiiy  Purchases of construction materials (i) MEBRETEERE QA
from Mibuka Denki Electrical (—EXmEEES
Controls Limited, a company WARE)EEEEMN
controlled by Mr. Ko el 171 221
(iv)  Purchases of construction materials  (iv) RIEHZEHAEZERA
from Chit Shing Air Conditioning A(—REXEELEN
Trading Limited, a company UMY R F 128 1 /)
controlled by a grandson of the ABEEREEME
uncle of Mr. Ko 14,945 12,670
(v)  Staff costs paid to employees who (v MEE(SELENEF
are a nephew and a niece of Mr. N2 7 R ok W L
Ko and brothers, a brother-in-law, a BN BEFRE
nephew and nieces of Ms. Cheung Z) B T KA 2,875 3,048
(v Amounts paid to Shing Chak (Vi) MEEBERBRAAR
Development Limited, a company (—HBEREEEE
wholly-owned by Mr. Ko: (Note 1) AR RR) T
FRIE: (B RET)
— Interest expenses on lease -HEEaEZ
liabilities =N 1 15
— Lease liabilities -HEAaRE 158 621
(vii) Amounts paid to Milan Development (vii) [AK B 2% E A R A @A
Limited, a company wholly-owned (—EBERZLTEE
by Ms. Cheung: (Note 2) BEARR)
IR (i FE2)
— Interest expenses on lease -HEBEZ
liabilities A BRI X 1 8
— Lease liabilities -HEAaRE 84 331
The above transactions were conducted in accordance Ll 22 5 Th AR 15 A8 B8 1 A 16 5K
with the terms of the relevant agreements. HEAT °
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (Continued)
Notes:

(1) As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of
the relevant right-of-use assets was nil (2019:
HK$154,000) and the carrying amount of the lease
liabilities was nil (2019: HK$158,000).

(2) As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of
the relevant right-of-use assets was nil (2019:
HK$82,000) and the carrying amount of the lease
liabilities was nil (2019: HK$82,000).

Save as (i), (iv), (vi) and (vii), the above transactions
also constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
are conducted in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements.

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

Compensation of key management personnel
represents the remuneration of the directors of the
Company and senior management of the Group
during the year were as follows:

(b %= H it 8350 - 15 L T 7)

29. B TR m)
(@ @
B 3 -

(1) 12020438318 - 1878 B #&
BAEZEHEMERZT(Q019F
154,000 T) A R EBE Z
Bk ™ 8 & Z (20194 : 158,000
BT °

(2) 12020438318 - 1878 5 B #E
BAEZEHEERZT(Q019F
82,000 T) AR EARF Z
BR ™ {8 & = (20194F : 82,0008
JT) °

BRG) ~ (v) ~ (vi) R (vi)dh » E il 32 5
MERK ETRBEAAZERENF
1B B X 5 0 AR 1 58 B 19 5 0 15
FRHETT ©

(b) TEEEAESRMH
TEEEABTFMEAFEAR

AEERAEESREEEOF
B - 0B R ¢

Year ended 31 March

HBZE3A3MALEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T T
Short-term benefits ySREETAT 7,192 4,920
Post-employment benefits B B3 12 7 B 72 36
7,264 4,956

(c) As at 31 March 2019 and 2020, the Group was
granted bank facilities for obtaining bank borrowings
(note 21), and giving performance guarantees to its
customers (note 25). Apart from the carpark space
(note 14) and the Insurance Policy (note 16) of the
Group, these bank facilities are also secured by
personal guarantees of Mr. Ko and Ms. Cheung and
their certain properties at nil consideration.

(d) During the year ended 31 March 2019, Mr. Ko agreed
to waive the Group’s amount due to him amounting
to HK$9,876,000 (2020: Nil).

(c) 720194 K%2020%3H318 * &~ &
EEEFETRENRGETER
(ffsE2) - TMERTEFRERBLY
R (BIE25) - BRAEER{EEAL
(B sE14) RAREE (B aE16) 4N - 3255

BITRENEBUSEERKL

THEAERARBEZE TY

EEERA -

(d) EHZ=2019F3831HFILEFEE 5%
ERERENEEEMNK ZHEA
9,876,000 JT (20204 : #) °
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30. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

31.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group
entities will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes bank loan and lease liabilities disclosed in
notes 21 and 22 respectively, net of pledged bank balances,
bank balances and cash disclosed in note 19, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, share premium, other reserve and retained
profits.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the management of the
Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with the capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through issuance of new shares and the raise of
borrowings or repayment of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

30. 54X EEE

31.

AEEEREEANNEREEEEBEN
FELE RSRBRLCEBRBRAF
B ZSREBEREE AKEABEF
FEHBRBREERSTE

AEENEAGREBEFEB(BRES
AR ENR2EENRTERREE
BE) RHUKCERRITHES R
LIRS (MM 19K E) ARAR
AEEARERERE (BROBITERA - K
B At ERRERN)

A& BB ARG MERINRIE I EAR
MIE °

AEBEEEEHRRAENLE - ER
tign—8n  AREEEEEERE
BeRARBERNBRORR - AEE
BEBBTHRORERERKERER
BEBVTHEERENRE -

€FITAR
T EER

As at 31 March

M3A318
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$’000
FH T THE T
Financial assets TELEE
Financial assets at amortised cost %2 55 K AN B BR /Y
TREE 228,848 71,299
Financial liabilities TRIBE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost % B8 55 P AN B BR /9
TRBE 41,614 26,676
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include payments
for life insurance, trade and other receivables, refundable
rental deposits, pledged bank balances, bank balances and
cash, trade, retention and other payables, lease liabilities
and bank loan. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of the
Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

The Group's operations expose it to a number of financial
risks: principally the interest rate risk, the credit risk and the
liquidity risk. Continuous monitoring of these risks ensures
that the Group is protected against any adverse effects of
such risks so far as it is possible and foreseeable.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and bank loan (see
notes 19 and 21, respectively, for details of these balances).
Fixed bank deposits and lease liabilities at fixed interest rate
exposed the Group of fair value interest rate risk. The Group
does not have a policy on cash flow hedges of interest
rate risk. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should need arise.

A sensitivity analysis is not presented because, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, reasonably
possible change in interest rate would not result in
significant impact to the post-tax profit of the Group.

31.

(Br = A it B £ 15 LA & T 81 o~

€/ T AEmwm
BEEREEEERBEE

FEENTIEZSRIABEXNER
T BHREMEBWIIE  TREES
Be  CHERRITER  RITEHREE
T BHENKEA - BARESREAM
ENRE HEABRRITER - %F
ERMTANHBREMERE - B2F
T & T A AR B A R B A S an Al 2 K 5% 5
REBROBRER T AEEEEEE
BREEZERR - AERNEA R
B iE MR

AEEMXBEERERZAMBGRE
B:TEREBEMNEXRER  EERER MR
BESAR - HEEEZTRRA R
AEEFAELREARINBERTRR
ZERBTERNERTFZE -

F F 7 B
AEBRZERTEHRLBTERGE
BZEEGNFB DB R E19%21)
HRESTREMNEER - ZEEFET
BHNEERTEALEEABREAEE
ERAFEMNERR - 485 B3 &5t 5
ZREARRIEERSREE PR - A -
EEEELMNERERR  TEREEZRE
B R E N ERR -

HRARRESTRBRMENEIEAEE
HIreHAKEZRREMNELEEAY
B HAESINFRESMN -
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31.

= AN =

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debtors. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables and contract assets. The management of the
Group performs impairment assessment on individual
debtor basis to estimate the amount of lifetime ECL of
trade receivables and contract assets based on internal
credit ratings, ageing, repayment history and/or past due
status of respective debtors. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information.

No impairment in respect of trade receivables and contract
assets was recognised as at 31 March 2019 and 2020 and
for the years then ended as the lifetime ECL, if any, is
insignificant. Details of the quantitative disclosure are set
out below in this note.

31.

RS B 3% SRR B BE

R T A m@m
BEEEEEEERBE@®

1= B 2 B K 6l 18 5F 18
RAEBRBFHRERTEEMER
AEBEMBBRRME  AEREAENK
REERBRKBLRE MBI ERAED
HECHEREREEMNKREE -

EPANELHEZELRAELE
SEEREKERERR  ARREEEZX
KEK AEETEFEERBEREERE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Other receivables and refundable rental deposits

The management of the Group performs impairment
assessment on individual debtor basis to estimate the
amount of ECL of other receivables and refundable
rental deposits based on internal credit ratings, ageing,
repayment history and/or past due status of respective other
receivables and adjusted for forward-looking information.
There has been no significant increase in credit risks
of the Group’s other receivables and refundable rental
deposits. No impairment in respect of other receivables and
refundable rental deposits was recognised as at 31 March
2019 and 2020 and for the years then ended as the 12m
ECL, if any, is insignificant.

Pledged bank balances and bank balances

The management of the Group assesses that the Group's
pledged bank balances and bank balances are at low credit
risk and no impairment was recognised as at 31 March
2019 and 2020 and for the years then ended because they
are placed with reputable banks with good external credit
ratings, and ECL, if any, is insignificant.

Payments for life insurance

The management of the Group assesses that the payments
for life insurance are at low credit risk and no impairment
was recognised as at 31 March 2019 and 2020 and for
the years then ended because the balances are due from
insurance company with good external credit rating, and
ECL, if any, is insignificant.

31.

@M IABmwm
BiEEEEEEERBE @
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

For assessment of the ECL of the Group’s financial assets
and contract assets, the Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal
credit

rating  Description

ABEE

Level 1 The counterparty has great ability of repayment, low
risk of default and has no history of impairment loss.
F—% HFHERENRT BHORREEERE
B iR ER o

Level 2 The counterparty has good ability of repayment,
which may be influenced by macro environment and
economic situation.

EFZR HFHERENRE  ATRXEEEREERER

e o e
KBRS 2 o

Level 3 The counterparty has ability of repayment but usually
settles in full after due date.

31. €@ I B
BREARETERERBKE@m

=B B B R 6 EFF 15 (&)

R EAEENEREERESNEEM
5 ASENRNEEERRFRTGEE
EAT R

Payments for

life insurance/

Other receivables/

Refundable rental

deposits/Pledged
Trade receivables and bank balances/Bank

=R HFHAEELH BRAENIHAR
BHREE -

Level 4  The counterparty may not have ability of repayment,
and is evidenced to be credit-impaired.

FOA HFHAURLEEREH BEABEERERR -

Level 5  The counterparty has no ability to repay its debts and
the receivable is not expected to be collectable.

FRAR BFHIAEEEREBREEN  BPAATYREERKE -

contract assets balances
ABRBRE
Hit x|,/
AREELEE
ESEWRER BEMBITES
BREE 1T &8
Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
not credit-impaired
FHEHEERR REARREEEE
(L ®|EERE)
Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
not credit-impaired
FHEHEERRE REARBEEEE
(T ®|EERME)
Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
HEHEERE FHEREEER
(T ®|EERE) (Y EEERME)
Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired
THEHEERRE HEBREEER
(BEERE) (BlEERE)

Amount is written off

SHEOME

Amount is written off

SHEOMB
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 31.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) 15 B 7 Bz R i (8 515 (4)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the TRFMML2019F K 2020F3 31 BASE
Group's payments for the trade and other receivables, ENZESREMEWKIE AHNEE

MEREAeRE  CERRITES R
THEHBEEASRRNRNEERR (A
ETHEREEBRNMG)

contract assets, refundable rental deposits, pledged bank
balances, bank balances and payments for life insurance as at
31 March 2019 and 2020, which subject to ECL assessment:

Gross carrying amount as at
31 March
MR3B31BZ
HMEEEmS

Internal

credit rating 2020 2019

AEEE
=T 4% 20205 20195
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT FET

Financial assets at
amortised cost:

REHK AT ER
SRMEE:
Trade receivables Lifetime ECL Level 1 14,879 15,905
=2 & (not_credit-impaired) F—14
EHEHEEREE Level 2 23,588 13,001
(I &5 ERE) FMR
I/_dgvel 3 3,263 512
5=
Other receivables Lifetime ECL Level 3 358 4
. (not _credit-impaired) ,,,,_
- {1 8 Ut 308 3 M B E A B4
(= B M E)
Refundable rental 12m ECL Level 2 359 219
deposits o "
AREESES 128 AfE S5 E &8 =Ry 4
Pledged bank balances 12m ECL Level 1 70,153 -
B IRIT 4 4 REAEBEESE F—
Bank balances 12m ECL Level 1 109,440 34,850
AT 4 AR 2@ AfE B E E &8 F—
Payments for life 12m ECL Level 1 6,808 6,808
insurance e .
AS KRB R 1218 A8 S5 E &5 18 £—R
Other item:
HEMIFE :
Contract assets Lifetime ECL Level 1 69,200 36,777
EHEE (not credit-impaired) F—
2HBHERER Level 2 40,357 28,983
(S EEERME) ER
3 5,593 5,163
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk because 51% of
trade receivables and contract assets as at 31 March 2020
(2019: 56%) were due from the Group’s top five customers.
The Group's top five customers are sizeable and reputable
companies. The management of the Group closely monitors
the subsequent settlement of the customers. In this regard,
the management of the Group considers the Group's credit
risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and the flexibility through the use of
borrowings, as appropriate.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities according
to the terms of the relevant contracts/agreements. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time regardless of the probability
of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.

31.

RS B 3% SRR B BE

R T A m@m
BEEEEEEERBE@®

=B B B R 6 EFF 15 (&)
H2020F3A31HE S EMKIB LKA L
& E /51% (20194 : 56%) 2K B AN &
WAARE ASEBEEREERR -
AEBNAARRFARMBEEERTHN
AR  AEEEEERYERTFENRE
BHEEBRL -G HE  AEEETEE
RAEAEENEERKRE NERIE -

AEEMEEEEBERBER(NER)
FEESHFEERBE T ZHERTF
fay

TRAMBBRESLH,HEOERSE
HAEEeRAENRKEOIHA -
RERDEREBEBENARMRERESR
BEARAKERERKERINNRER
iR - ABME - TwiRITERTE
HEFOAIENE B2 REBREEGKRR
MIRTTEACERERPRHR - HbIF
TSR A ER S B A AR B 5 & &
RHETE ZREEMNEREAERER

=
= °
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

31. €@ I BEuw
BRREEEERBEw@

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Weighted
average

interest rate

i
SZELIES

On demand
or within
six months
~EAR
HK$'000
THERT

REBELERE®E)

Six months
to one year

A
E-5
HK$'000
7

Total

More than undiscounted

one year

—FH0LE
HK$'000
TER

cash flows
AR
mEAE
HK$'000
TER

Carrying
amount

fREE
HK$'000
TER

As at 31 March 2020 2020634318
Trade, retention and ESRMNFE  EIRES
other payables R H e 5108 N/A TER 26,735 7,092 7,304 41,131 41,131
Bank loan - Variable rate  SR1TEM - Z & 3.00 483 - - 483 483
27,218 7,092 7,304 1,614 41,614
Lease liabilities HEAE 2.50 876 792 1,258 2,926 2,788
As at 31 March 2019 R201953A318
Trade, retention and ESRMNFE  EIRES
other payables R E A & 50 N/A 38 20,371 1,123 3,723 25,217 25,217
Bank loan - Variable rate ~ R{TEH- 28 298 1,459 = = 1,459 1,459
21,830 1123 3,723 26,676 26,676
Lease liabilities HEAEE 2.68 643 400 1,197 2,240 2,066
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As disclosed in note 21, the Group’s bank loan under the
banking facilities of the Group, might be immediately due
and repayable on demand by the relevant bank without
prior notice to the Group.

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
management of the Group does not believe that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretionary right
to demand immediate repayment. The management of
the Group believes that such bank loan will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the relevant bank facilities letters, details of which are set
out in the tables below:

31.

B 15 SRR I 5E

€I BEumwm
BREREEEERBEw@

REBELERE®E)

AR EE21FTIREE AEERITHETH
RITER AR AEELBNAE
B IE R T w AR R 1T EkENR 2| 23 E
5% o

ZRINAKEENTBAN  AEEEE
EBRBRITIAARETEERGEZR
Eﬂﬁ—iﬁaw\ AEEEEEMRE ZFR
TTE SR RAARRITRE K AT A
‘|‘§|J“ihE|Hﬂféfﬁ HBEERTR:

Weighted On demand Total
average  or within Six months More than undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate  six months to one year  one year cash flows amount
mE  REXH A8 A AERAE
FHH = AEAR E-F —-FHt MEAE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
% TER TER TER TER TER
As at 31 March 2020 H2020%3A31H
Bank loan - Variable rate RITEHR - FE 3.00 75 75 360 510 483
As at 31 March 2019 #201943831 El
Bank loan - Variable rate RITEH - 28 2.98 921 75 510 1,506 1,459
The amounts included above for variable interest rate WZEMENEHFRARRERARGE

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates
of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

FEEfE SRR - LRSS RAET
ETENSHARLALEY -

ERMTANRFETE
cRMEENERABBENRFEDRE
BBRBREREIMBROAREBRAME
E o

AEEERERS  REGMBBRA
BEERAIENEREERERAE
MEmEREAFERS
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. B ARIMFE
The Company has direct and indirect shareholdings of the RARETINB AR RS EE KA
following subsidiaries: P HEE

Equity interest
attributable
to the Group

REEEGRE
As at 31 March
MW3H31H
Issued and
Name of Place of Place of fully paid
subsidiary incorporation operations share capital 2020 Principal activities
ERTR
o N AR KEWE BRRA 20204 TEXK
Directly held:
HEEREH:
Ascend BVI Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Ascend EBRELES BF 27 7T 100% 100% IR EZEK
Indirectly held:
BEEs:
Chit Tat Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100% 100% Provision of E&M
engineering services
= BE BE 5,000,000/ 7T 100% 100% #2 i E T2 R 7%
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities MAFE  WEMBAREETEME

during the year. BEH
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. XA T MR R K
THE COMPANY
Statement of Financial Position of the
Company

RAT B F AR R

As at 31 March

M3H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T FE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHERARHIKE 77,266 77,266
Due from a subsidiary JE W — I BT /&8 & & 5k 18 60,000 -
137,266 77,266
Current assets REEE
Due from a subsidiary JE W — BT B /&8 A & 5k 18 50,345 -
Prepayments T8 ;I8 172 -
Prepaid listing expenses and B TR REBEITR A
issue costs = 203
Deferred issue costs i JE B 1T AR AN - 3,340
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRRA® 46,239 -
96,756 3,543
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to a subsidiary JE <7 — R BfY /&8 & R 3RIR = 13,324
Accrued issue costs and FEErETRAR ETHX
listing expenses = 1,750
= 15,074
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE(BE)FHE 96,756 (11,531)
Net assets BEEFE 234,022 65,735
Capital and reserves EXRFE
Share capital [N 8,000 =
Reserves (Note) fib s (P 5E) 226,022 65,735
Total equity R 234,022 65,735

*  Amount less than HK$1,000.

*

D R1,000/8 T B9 % BE o
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. &AA R B AR R T @
THE COMPANY (continued)

Statement of Financial Position of the AT MR T @0
Company (continued)

Note: B 5

The reserves of the Company are as follows: RAFEREHINAT

(Accumulated

losses)
Share Retained
premium profits Total
(REHE8)
B4 % E REB&F FoR]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FTER TER
On 20 September 2018 201849 H20H
(date of incorporation) (Gl ava=R-:)) - - -
Issue of ordinary shares of the S e N/NC]
Company for the Reorganisation LR 77,266 = 77,266
Loss and total comprehensive HABEBREZERAY
expenses for the period 48 RE - (11,531) (11,531)
At 31 March 2019 72019435318 77,266 (11,531) 65,735
Issue of ordinary shares of the BERMDES
Company pursuant to the BOARAR L BERK
Share Offer 144,000 - 144,000
Capitalisation Issue BEARLELT (6,000) = (6,000)
Share issue expenses RDETHRX (19,660) - (19,660)
Profit and total comprehensive FREF &2 EK =
income for the year k) = 41,947 41,947

195,606 30,416 226,022
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34.

A+ H

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Since the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19") epidemic in January 2020 in the PRC, the
contagion of COVID-19 has spread worldwide. Different
countries’ authorities have taken national prevention and
control measures against the disease. The pandemic caused
by the COVID-19 has certain impacts on the business
operation and overall economy in different regions and
industries in the world.

In response to the epidemic, the Group has suspended
a few projects for a short period of time. The Group
has gradually resumed operations since March 2020
while the directors of the Company consider that the
impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s operations and
future prospects would depend on the duration of the
epidemic, the implementation of regulatory policies and
relevant protective measures that might affect the business
environment that the Group is operating at. If the Group’s
construction workers are infected, it will significantly affect
the progress of the projects. The Group will stay alert on
the development and situation of the COVID-19, continue
to assess its impacts on the financial position and operating
results of the Group and take necessary actions to mitigate
its business risk. Up to the date of this report, the aforesaid
assessment is still in progress.

3. BEHRER

B202041 A £ 7 Bl 1 320194 78 ik 7w
SR(HFEBERFE]) RITERBUK
N ERRENELEEERIRETE -
TRAERERDHYZABRENTER
BRI RAEHIEME - B AR EMRARS IR
MARITH 2 HRTRMERITENER

LENBRRBEELE—TEXE -

BREUERE AEBEREHREES
TIEE - H2020E3A#E  NEBED &R
IEEIE  MARAESZR AT
REHAEEEERKRRASHZES
BURRZMITIR A ERRE  BiEmE
B AT B 52 2R B 2K & B 48 & T Y
AERBEZHBRERR AEEHET
ABWRE  EHIREEEKREXN
FE - AEEBHFABRBESNER
MERRELEG  EEITHEUAEE
MR R EEEENET RN E
BB EEBRER - HEARKREH
H o AR EELT o
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